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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRE®|E

GROUP RESULTS

Turnover of the Group for the current year of 2012/13 decreased to
HK$1,333,068,000 (2011/12: HK$1,750,673,000) and the overall net
profit was HK$55,746,000 (2011/12: HK$104,333,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The overall net profit for the Group dropped by 47% to HK$55,746,000
(2011/12: HK$104,333,000) while the operating profit from our business
also dropped by 52% to HK$39,273,000 (2011/12: HK$82,233,000).
The decrease in our turnover as well as the loss recorded by our
investments in the jointly controlled entities in Wuxi contributed to the

unsatisfactory overall results of the year under review.

Our factory in Guigang (Guangxi, China) in fiscal year 2012/13
successfully replaced our factories in Panyu (Guangzhou, China) as the
main production base for manufacturing our woven pants orders. It is
our plan to move our production of knitted wears to Guigang in the
following year. Our Panyu operation will change from manufacturing
to a liaison centre, providing support to our sales and production

departments.

The appreciation of Renminbi, incessant increase in legal minimum
wages, social insurance, housing fund and construction and educational
surcharges continue to escalate our manufacturing costs. Coupled with
the fierce competition from overseas, our operations in China have
been under great pressure. Measures have already been implemented to
strengthen our competitiveness as well as to fortify our position to be a

reliable and long term manufacturing partner.

Through expansion of the manufacturing facilities and the efforts of
our management, Lavender Garment Limited, our garment factory in
Bangladesh, recorded a similar level of profit in the year under review
despite the continuously rising costs in operation. Through continuous
expansion of its manufacturing facilities and providing professional
procurement services to our clients, management expects the

performance in 2013/14 can be sustained.

Our investments in the jointly controlled entities in Wuxi had a difficult
year which resulted in a loss, despite the improved result in the second
half of the year. Management, however, expects the following year to be

profitable provided that the cotton prices will not fluctuate adversely.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERE®|E

OUTLOOK

Although the United States market has improved slightly, European
economies remain sluggish and additionally the economy in China has
slowed down. We are in the process of restructuring our manufacturing
facilities in China but will continue to expand in Bangladesh and other
low-cost areas such as Myanmar. Overall, the garment business remains
difficult. Our investments in the jointly controlled entities in Wuxi are

expected to improve their results in the coming year.

APPRECIATION

| would like, on behalf of the Board and shareholders, to express our
appreciation to the Company’s employees for their hard work and loyal

service to the Company during the past year.
By Order of the Board
Chan Sui Kau

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 June 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 March 2013 was
HK$1,333,068,000 compared with HK$1,750,673,000 of the year before,
and the Group’s profit for the year was HK$55,746,000 compared with
previous year’s HK$104,333,000.

GARMENT BUSINESS

Yangtzekiang Garment Limited and Hong Kong Knitters Limited are
the two names that we use to operate our garment business. We
manufacture a wide variety of products that included men’s and ladies’
shirts, trousers, shorts, polo shirts, T-shirts, jackets and knitted
outerwear, etc. Hong Kong is our Group’s headquarters that handles
all garment businesses including manufacturing, trading and sourcing.
We have factories in China (Guigang and Panyu), and Bangladesh.
Besides Hong Kong, we also have offices in many parts of China (Panyu,
Dongguan, Hangzhou, Wuxi and Shanghai) and Myanmar which not
only provide supports to our own factories, but also liaise with our

subcontractors and business partners there.

In fiscal year 2012/13, our factory in Guigang (Guangxi, China)
successfully replaced our Panyu factories as our main production base
for woven pants. In the coming year, we plan to move our production
of knitted wears to Guigang as well. After that, our Panyu operation
will become a liaison center, a center for samples production as well
as providing technical and management supports to our factories in

Guigang, our subcontractors and business partners.

Lavender Garment Limited, our factory in Bangladesh, had a very
busy year in 2012/13, and was able to maintain the same profit level.
Management expects expansion of the factory’s capacity was able to
mitigate the difficulties caused by Taka’s appreciation and salary increase
in Bangladesh. Management is of the opinion that there is a good
prospect for the coming year, provided the Bangladesh government
could gain back the buyers’ confidence soon enough after the disasters
happened there and also whether the workers’ demand for higher wages

could be dealt with amicably.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED N

OTHER BUSINESS

Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. in which we have a 49%
shareholding is a jointly controlled entity that owns several textiles
related companies in Wuxi, China (“Wuxi Group”). The core business of
the Wuxi Group is the production of medium range to high end yarns.
During the year under review, the Wuxi Group faced the difficulties in
divergence of domestic and international cotton prices, with domestic
prices higher than international market by 25% — 30%. Management
responded with changes in product mix and cotton purchase strategy,
which resulted in the turn around in second half of the year. Overall,
its results for the year still ended with a loss. Various productivity
enhancements and cost-saving measures have been implemented. Barring
severely adverse cotton price fluctuation, the following year is expected

to be profitable.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION

During the year under review, the Group’s operations continued to be

financed by the internal resources and bank borrowings.

As at 31 March 2013, the cash and bank balances of the Group were
approximately HK$270,015,000 (2012: HK$149,227,000). As at 31 March
2013 and 2012, the Group did not have any short term borrowings and

long term borrowings.

The Group adopts a prudent policy to hedge the fluctuation of foreign
exchange rates. As most of the Group’s sales, purchases, cash and
bank balances and bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, United States dollars, Euros, Pound Sterling or Renminbi, the
Group may enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its
receivables and payables denominated in the above foreign currencies
against the exchange rate fluctuation when the exposure is significant.
As at 31 March 2013, the Group has foreign exchange contracts hedging
forecast transactions with a net fair value of HK$52,000 (2012: HK$Nil),

recognised as derivative financial assets.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2013, none of the assets of the Group was pledged.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group, including its subsidiaries but excluding
its associates and jointly controlled entities, employed approximately
4,200 employees. Remuneration packages are determined by reference
to employees’ performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market.
In addition, the Group provides year end double pay, provident fund

scheme, medical insurance and training to staff.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and
sale of garments and textiles, provision of processing services and
rental of properties. The principal activities and other particulars of
the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note |6 to the financial

statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in note 12

to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 3| March 2013 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in

the financial statements on pages 3| to 145.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 27(c) to the

financial statements. There were no movements during the year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profits attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before
dividends, for the year ended 31 March 2013 of HK$53,082,000 (2012:
HK$103,159,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other movements
in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

No interim dividend was paid during the year ended 3| March 2013
(2012: HK2 cents per share). The directors now recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK5 cents (2012: HKé cents) per share in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2013.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEREE

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in

note |3 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$20,000 (2012: HK$95,000).

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the

financial year is as follows:

BEEEFA BB BN BERKKN
F13

EEBR

REBFRAZZEZEZBHAE20,0008 T (==
— =4 : 95,0008 7T) °

TEEFFRETEHER

REAMBRFERNTERZFRHEBEASE
B BHERERRBEINAOT ¢

Percentage of the Group’s total

EAREBEAE
2013 2012
—EB—-=F —E—C—F
Sales  Purchases Sales Purchases
HE R HE RE
The largest customer BRREF 19% 23%
Five largest customers in BEKREFAS
aggregate 47% 51%
The largest supplier BRAMERS 7% 7%
Five largest suppliers in BREARMHEFSE
23% 22%

aggregate

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in

these major customers and suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

DIRECTORS

The present directors of the Company are listed on page 2 to the annual

report.

Pursuant to Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Mr. Chan Wing Kee, Mr. Chan Wing To and
Madam Chan Suk Man, will retire from the Board by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company.

On 10 December 2012, Mr. Choi Ting Ki was appointed as an

independent non-executive director of the Company.

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Choi Ting
Ki who was appointed as a Director by the Board after the last annual
general meeting held on 14 September 2012 will also retire and, being

eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation of their
respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“the Stock Exchange”) (“the Listing Rules”) and the Company considers

the independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory

obligations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as set out amongst other related party transactions in note 3|
to the financial statements, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERESE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

(@) As at 3| March 2013, the interests and short positions of the
directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“the Model Code”) and which were required to be entered
in the register kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO

were as follows:

ESZBROBEE
@ R-B—=%=g=+—0 %27

BESRHMEZHEALRALTR
EMBENE (REERBERD (TR
ZRP) 1) EXVRR 2 & &) IR - 1HEE
10 R &% R RE R FIRAIEXV
METRSDE - LT RABEFETHE
ZREFEFH(RETFH D ZRE
AHEALNARBIMzEERAXR
(BRERERBZEEFROARERR
REFEERERAR)  UEE
RRRIER S HROIEMRFE 2B
MeBERABEWT

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each
EREERKISOTZEERMER

Personal Family Corporate Other

interests interests interests interests
Name of director EEHR AR RikER ATFER Hih s
Chan Sui Kau R 3 BR 4,324,696 3,999,354 5,611,230 0}
Chan Wing Fui, Peter PRk ZE 486,102 8,367,130 = (i) & (ii)
Chan Wing Kee R 7K A 8,589,624 208,356 = (i), (ii) & (iii)
Chan Wing To BeR 7K E 12,042,054 - - (i), (ii) & (iii)
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel B oK 22 6,089,244 250,000 3,293,080 (i) & (ii)
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley BBRNE 4,369,816 24,000 = (i) & (ii)
Chan Suk Man 2B 3,355,442 - - (i), (ii) & (iii)
So Ying Woon, Alan B pEIE 12,000 = = =
Leung Hok Lim RER - - - -
Lin Keping M F - - - -
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael iRz <3 - - - -
Choi Ting Ki BEH - - - -

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 £E &R



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

(@)

(b)

(continued)

Notes:

(0]

(i)

(iif)

48,032,240 shares of the Company were held by Chan Family
Investment Corporation Ltd. (which is owned by Messrs Chan Sui
Kau, Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To and Chan
Wing Sun, Samuel, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and Madam Chan

Suk Man and other members of the Chan Family) and its subsidiaries.

1,577,388 shares of the Company were held by Hearty Development
Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing Fui, Peter,
Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Madam
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley, Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of
the Chan Family.

2,383,500 shares of the Company were held by Super Team
International Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing
Kee, Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of the
Chan Family.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the directors

or their associates, had, under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of

the S
provi
share
assoc
SFO)

FO, nor were they taken to or deemed to have under such
sions of the SFO, any interests or short positions in the
s, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
iated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the

or any interests which are required to be entered into the

register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO

or an

y interests which are required to be notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

@

(b)

(#)

LGS

(if)

(iif)

& $148,032,240 A 2 ] B 7 T3 B
Chan Family Investment Corporation
Led. (HBRIGERESE - BRAKELE -
BRAKMEE - RAEEERRKRZSE
4 FARAERZERIARAIZER
HMRRREREEE) REKEQ
AR -

B 1,577,388 A A B KR T A
Hearty Development Limitedi¥ 78 © 3%
DARBARKELRE BRABEEE - K
KOEEE  BRAKRELE - BRRK L
T BIFUR 2+ R HfBR KRR
EREESR -

& 342,383,500/ A< A T AR 42 T3 A Super
Team International Limited3$ & © 322
THBRKELE BRKELEE - R
Mt RHEMRERER S EEE
F=d

BREXFIEN RZF-—Z=F=A

=+

—H BESIAWEZBEATL

BERAQ TR EMEE QT (REFH
RGIEXVEB 2 E) 2 k17 - HER
DREFTFRERWERIEEERIER
FARBIEXVERRTRED B2 A A
AR MBERLTRAD AREEFK
BIE3SUREFE 2 B M2 EAESS
RRBEZEETHZREAANEERRAT
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS

Other than the interests disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests
in shares” in respect of the directors, the following shareholder had
interests in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as at
31 March 2013, according to the register of interests and short positions

required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

TERRREMALTESR

A—E-=ZF=ZA=+—H BRELAE
BRI ER IPTRE 2SN RERS
R BERBIEDBMFBAEFEZROERR
KEBEMAR FEARARACBITRE
5% U L 2 RIRGCHWT ¢
Number of Percentage
ordinary of issued

shares held share capital

Name of Capacity BFEEBER (HEBITRE

shareholder BRAERE fEEME BHEE Btk

Guangzhou Textiles Industry & EBMGEBTESE Beneficial owner 12,784,000 6.18%
Trade Holdings Ltd. EBEERLA EREFA (Note)
(Htat)

Note:  The shares were directly held by Yue Xiu Textiles Co., Ltd., a 100%
owned subsidiary of Guangzhou Textiles Industry & Trade Holdings Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, no other interests required to be recorded in
the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the

Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 23 September 2004, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) which will remain in force until 22
September 2014. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to directors and employees of the Group
and other eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the Company,
provided that the total number of shares in the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
does not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, which was 14,024,579 shares.
On 19 September 2006, it was approved in the annual general meeting
that the maximum number of options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme was increased to 21,036,868 shares, representing 10% of

the total number of ordinary shares in issue on that day.

No options were granted under the Share Option Scheme during the

year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions under Chapter |4A of the Listing
Rules are set out amongst other related party transactions in note 31(a)
to the financial statements. As certain directors and their associates are
collectively the controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of YGM Trading Limited and its subsidiaries (“YGMT Group”) and the
Group, the related party transactions constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter |4A of the
Listing Rules. Of these, sales of garment products to YGMT Group and
rental income received and receivable from YGMT Group constitute the
connected transactions to be disclosed as defined under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Other transactions with YGMT Group are exempt

from the disclosure requirements in Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors, these

transactions were entered into by the Group:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(ii) conducted either on normal commercial terms (which expression
will be applied by reference to transactions of a similar nature
and to be made by similar entities) or where there is no available
comparison, on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the

independent shareholders of the Company are concerned;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the

transactions; and

(iv) in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where

applicable.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock

Exchange.

There are no other connected transactions which are required to be
disclosed in this report in accordance with the requirements of Chapter
I4A of the Listing Rules.
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R E A £ X5 M5 5 | Mt
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEREE

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note

24 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

To comply with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix |4
to the Listing Rules, the Company has set up an audit committee (the
“Committee”) with written terms of reference, for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision on the financial reporting process
and internal control of the Group. The Committee comprises four

independent non-executive directors.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 147 and 148 of the annual

report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s

issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company.
By Order of the Board
Chan Sui Kau

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 June 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is dedicated to
uphold a high corporate governance standard. The Board firmly believes
that the principles of transparency, accountability and independence are
essential for protecting the interests of the Company and maximizing

shareholder value.

The Company has complied with the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (effective from | April 2012) (the “Code”) set out
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Listing Rules”) throughout the financial year ended 3| March
2013, except for the deviation from code provision A.4.l of the Code,
pursuant to which the non-executive directors of the Company should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The non-
executive directors of Company are not appointed for a specific term
but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election requirements
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with

Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s articles of association.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders. The Board sets the Group’s overall
objectives and strategic directions, monitors and evaluates its operating
and financial performance. It also decides on matters relating to annual
and interim results, audited financial statements, notifiable transactions,
appointment and re-appointment of directors, major acquisitions and
disposals, material contracts, risk management, major financings and
borrowings, accounting and dividends policies. The Board delegates day-
to-day operations of the Company to the management of the Group
and also instructs the management to implement the Board’s decisions
and resolutions. In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee

and the Nomination Committee.

The Board comprises eight executive directors and four independent
non-executive directors. The number of independent non-executive
directors represents at least one-third of the Board in accordance
with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive
directors bring a diverse range of expertise, skills and experience to
provide effective guidance and an outside perspective to all major

decisions of the Group.

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the directors as well as
relationships between them are set out in the section of “Directors and

Management”.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREAHE

The Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee had held 5, 3, | and 2 meetings respectively in

the year under review.

The attendance at the Board and respective Board committees meetings

held in the year ended 31 March 2013 are as follows:

BEEE  ERZES FHEESSRREEE
BREBEFEIREITTER =R
RRREE

g
—R
EXZERREZZEENEE-Z—=
ZAZtT-RLEFERAMBTERILE
RBEINMT

Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee  Committee = Committee Meeting
Exg EREE® FMWEEE REZET RFEBFEAE
Executive directors HITES

Chan Sui Kau BR 3 3R 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 11
Chan Wing Fui, Peter BRoKE 5/5 N/A 1 212 1/
Chan Wing Kee R 7k 5/5 N/A 1/ 212 1
Chan Wing To B K E 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 11
Chan Suk Man ZIBM X 4/5 N/A N/A N/A 11
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel PR 7k 22 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 11
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley AR 4/5 N/A N/A N/A 1
So Ying Woon, Alan B EE 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 11

Independent non-executive BIYFHTES

directors

Leung Hok Lim RER 5/5 3/3 11 212 11
Lin Keping MRF 5/5 3/3 1 212 11
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael iR s 5/5 33 171 2/2 171
Choi Ting Ki BEHR 15 13 N/A N/A N/A

(appointed on R=F—=F

10 December 2012) TZATHEZEM

The 2012 Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) was held on 14 September
2012, all the directors, including the Chairman of the Board, the
Chairman of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee and the external auditor of the Company,
attended the AGM to answer questions raised by shareholders.
Proceedings of annual general meeting are reviewed from time to
time to ensure that the Company follows good corporate governance
practices. Voting results were posted on the Company’s and the Stock

Exchange’s website on the day of the AGM.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed with the
Company in writing his independence from the Company in accordance
with the relevant guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee and the Board considered that all independent
non-executive directors of the Company are independent with reference
to Rule 3.13.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND DUTIES

The Board is committed to ensure that a good corporate governance
framework and practices are established within the Group. The Board is
responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance functions
as required under code provision D.3.| of the Code which are set out

below:

(1) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance and making recommendations to the board;

(2) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional

development of directors and senior management;

(3) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;

and

(5) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure

in the Corporate Governance Report.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The Chairman of the Board is Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the Managing
Director of the Company is Mr. Chan Wing Kee. The roles of the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director of the Company
are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities. The Chairman
of the Board is responsible for formulating corporate strategies and
overall business development planning. The Managing Director’s duty
is to oversee the execution of daily business activities. The division of
responsibilities at the board level is to ensure a balance of power and

authority.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREAHE

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company should
be responsible for arranging and funding suitable training, placing an
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the directors.
The Company provides tailored induction programme to new director
upon his appointment to equip him with the appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Group and to ensure that he is
fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the relevant law
and the Listing Rules. The Company also circulates regular updates and
materials on changes and developments relating to the legislative and

regulatory environment to the directors.

During the year, the Company organised one in-house seminar to update
the Directors on the new amendments to the corporate governance
code and relevant Listing Rules. The Company circulates material
relating to the legislative and regulatory environment to the directors
on a regular basis for their information. The Company also encourages
Directors to attend relevant seminars, conferences or forums to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skill. During the year, all directors
participated in continuous professional development in compliance with

code provision A.6.5 of the Code.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

During the year, the Company has arranged for the renewal of an
insurance policy on directors’ and officers’ liability to ensure our
directors and senior management are protected from any liability arising

from the performance of their duties.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, each with mandate to
oversee particular aspects of the affairs of the Company. Each of these
three Board committees is set up with written terms of reference. The
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and are able to seek independent professional advice in

appropriate circumstance at the expenses of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference. The Audit Committee comprises all four independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping, Mr. Sze
Cho Cheung, Michael and Mr. Choi Ting Ki. It is chaired by Mr. Leung
Hok Lim. The members’ attendance to the Audit Committee meeting is

listed out on page 16.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for monitoring the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements, reviewing the Company’s internal
control system and its execution through the review of the work
undertaken by the internal and external auditors, evaluating financial
information and related disclosure, reviewing connected transactions and
considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and

their training programmes and budget.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Audit Committee has,
inter alia, reviewed and discussed with management and the external
auditor the interim and annual results with a view to ensuring that
the Group’s financial statements were prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. Further, the
Audit Committee has engaged an external consultant to perform internal
audit services and has discussed the scope of work and findings with
the external consultant. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
independence and quality of work of KPMG and has recommended to
the Board to re-appoint KPMG as auditor for the year ended 31 March
2014.

During the year, the Board has not taken any view that is different
from that of the Audit Committee nor rejected any recommendation

presented by the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Committee comprises two executive directors, namely Mr. Chan
Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Kee, and four independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping, Mr.
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael and Mr. Choi Ting Ki. It is chaired by Mr. Sze
Cho Cheung, Michael. The members’ attendance to the Remuneration

Committee meeting is listed out on page 6.
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The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and in overseeing remuneration packages of the directors. It makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management. It takes into
consideration factors such as salaries and compensation packages paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors. It would also take into account whether the emoluments
offered are appropriate given the duties and performance of the
respective individuals concerned and whether such emoluments are

competitive and sufficiently attractive to retain such individuals.

Details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in note 7 to the

financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises two executive directors, namely
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Kee, and four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping,
Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael and Mr. Choi Ting Ki. It is chaired by
Mr. Leung Hok Lim. The members’ attendance to the Nomination

Committee meeting is listed out on page 6.

The roles of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, identify individuals suitably qualified
to become members of the Board, and assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and re-election of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the managing
director. The Nomination Committee will consider the suitability of the
candidate on the basis of his professional qualification, skills, experience

and background.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board. The Nomination Committee
assessed the independence of Mr. Choi Ting Ki and recommended him
to the Board as a candidate to act as an independent non-executive

director.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management of the Group comprises 7 individuals. Details
of backgrounds and qualifications of each senior executive are set out in

the section of “Directors and Management”.

During the year ended 3| March 2013, the emoluments of the senior

management of the Group fell within the following bands:

EREEAEME

TEBSREEASBRIBEAL - &K
THRAEBESREEENESREEAS ]
_Eﬁ °

RBE-2-—=5=A=+t-HLFER
FEESREBABNHENFTHERM :

Number of senior executives

Remuneration [ BRITHRAEHE
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 078 7t £1,000,00058 7T |
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,0007& Jt £2,000,00078 JT 5
HK$2,000,000 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,00058 7t 2£3,000,00058 7T |

7

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and

applicable accounting standards.

The statement of external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities of the financial statements is set out in the

“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 29 to 30.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, total auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory
audit work of the Group amounted to HK$1,729,000 (2012:
HK$1,736,000), of which a sum of HK$1,620,000 (2012: HK$1,540,000)
was paid or payable to the Group’s principal auditors, KPMG.

The remunerations paid or payable to the Group’s principal auditor,
KPMG and its affiliated firms, for services rendered in statutory
audit and non-audit were HK$1,620,000 (2012: HK$1,540,000) and
HK$210,000 (2012: HK$193,000) respectively. The non-audit services

principally comprise of tax and review services provided to the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a Securities Dealing Code regarding
director’s securities transactions on terms no less exacting than required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. All directors have confirmed, upon specific
enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code

throughout the year under review.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate
and sound internal control system and through the Audit Committee
and an external firm of qualified accountants (“Internal Auditors”) to
provide internal audit services, conducts reviews on the effectiveness of
these systems at least annually, covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management
functions. The process used in reviewing the effectiveness of these
internal control systems includes discussion with management on risk
areas identified by management. The purpose of the Company’s internal
control is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks
of failure in operational systems so that the Company’s objectives can be

achieved.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

Although there was no in-house internal audit set up during the year,
the Company engaged the Internal Auditors to review specific areas
of concern identified by management and the Audit Committee. The
Internal Auditors performed a review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal control of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 so
as to furnish some degree of comfort to the Audit Committee and the
Board on the reliability and integrity of the system and control process.
The results of the internal control review were submitted to the Audit
Committee for consideration. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
results of the internal control review and is satisfied that the existing

system of internal controls is effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary is
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/or the
Vice Chairman on governance matters and also facilitates the induction
and professional development of directors. The Company Secretary
also keeps proper records of all Board and Board committee meetings.
The biography of the Company Secretary is set out on page 28. The
Company Secretary has undertaken no less than |5 hours of professional

training during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting “EGM”

Article 67 of the articles of association of the Company provides that
an extraordinary general meeting shall be convened on requisition, as
provided by the Companies Ordinance. According to section |13 of the
Companies Ordinance, directors shall forthwith convene an EGM upon
the requisition of the shareholders holding not less than 5% of the paid-

up capital of the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at EGM

Pursuant to section |13 of the Companies Ordinance, the requisition for
EGM must state the objects of the meeting and must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the Company.
The directors should convene an EGM within 2| days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition by issuing a notice of EGM. The EGM shall
take place on a day not more than 28 days after the date of such notice

of EGM.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through the
Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the Board for

handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as follows:

The Company Secretary
Yangtzekiang Garment Limited
22 Tai Yau Street,

San Po Kong,

Kowloon,

Hong Kong

E-Mail: info@ygm.com.hk
Telephone: (852) 2327 5111
Facsimile: (852) 2352 2286

Changes in the Company’s constitutional documents

On 14 September 2012, special resolutions were passed to amend
the articles of association of the Company in order to (i) ensure
compliance with the recent amendments to the Listing Rules relating
to corporate governance and fixing of record date for entitlements
subject to shareholders’ approval, and (ii) facilitate arrangement of the
Company’s general meetings. Details of the amendments to the Articles
of Association are set out in the circular of the Company dated 26 July
2012.
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DIRECTORS

Chan Sui Kau, GBM, GBS, |P

Aged 88, Dr. Chan is the founder of our Group. He established the
Company in 1949 and is the Executive Chairman of the Company and
the Honorary Chairman of YGM Trading Ltd. Having been a Justices of
the Peace since 1983, Dr. Chan was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star in
2002 and six years later in 2008 he was awarded the Grand Bauhinia
Medal. Dr. Chan used to serve as a member of the 8th & 9th term of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee until he reached
the retirement age. Dr. Chan is also an Honorary Citizen of Dongguan,

Foshan, Guangzhou and Wuxi (Jiangsu).

Dr. Chan received an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001;
an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from City University
of Hong Kong in 2007 and in the same year an Honorary University
Fellowship from The University of Hong Kong. Dr. Chan received
another two honorary university conferments: one was an Honorary
University Fellowship from Hong Kong Baptist University and the
other one was an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from
The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology in 2008. Dr. Chan
received an Honorary Fellowship from The Chinese University of Hong

Kong in 2013.

Dr. Chan is the former Chairman of the Clothing Industry Training
Authority (1986); former Chairman of the Textile Council of Hong Kong
(1988-1994) and presently its Honorary Chairman; former President
of Federation of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers (1977-1988) and
currently its Life Honorary President; Honorary President of Hong Kong
Woollen & Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association since 1980 and
former member of Textile Advisory Board of Hong Kong (1971-1987) as
well as the Hong Kong Labour Advisory Board (1985-1995).

Chan Wing Fui, Peter, MA

Aged 67, Mr. Chan received a Master’s degree in Administrative Science
from Yale University, USA in 1969 and joined the Group in the same
year. He was appointed as Director and Managing Director of the
Company in 1971 and 1980 respectively and Vice Chairman of the board
of directors of the Company and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987. He has been
appointed as the Chairman of the board of directors of YGM Trading
Limited since May 2010. Mr Chan has been actively involved in garment
manufacturing and marketing in the Far East and the USA for over 30
years. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan
Wing Sun, Samuel and Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
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Chan Wing Kee, GBS, OBE, |JP

Aged 66, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering
in 1970. He joined the Group in 1970 as Production Manager and
later became Sales Manager. He was appointed as Director in 1977
and Managing Director in 1987. He is also a Director of YGM Trading
Limited; Independent Non-executive Director of China Travel
International Investment Hong Kong Limited and China Construction
Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited. Mr. Chan has participated in many
textile negotiations with the USA and Europe for Hong Kong and Macau.
He is a Standing Committee Member of The 10th, | Ith and 12th of The
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference; Deputy of the 8th
& 9th National People’s Congress of China; Member of Commission on
Strategic Development of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region; Ex-
member of Economic Council of Macau Special Administrative Region;
Ex-member of the Textile Advisory Board; Ex-Committee Member
of the Preparatory Committee for Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region and Ex-Advisor of Hong Kong Affairs. He is the brother of Mr.
Chan Wing To and Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Chan Wing To, PhD

Aged 62, Mr. Chan joined YGM Singapore in 1978. He was appointed
as Director of the Group in 1983 and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987. Mr.
Chan received a Doctor of Philosophy degree in economics from the
University of Rochester, USA in 1978. He has extensive experience in
the textile and garment business. He is the brother of Mr. Chan Wing
Kee and Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Chan Suk Man, MSc

Aged 65, Ms. Chan received Master of Science Degrees from the
University of Windsor, Canada in 1973 and Case Western Reserve
University USA in 1975. Madam Chan joined the Group in 1976 and was
appointed as Director in 1993. She is the sister of Mr. Chan Wing Kee
and Mr. Chan Wing To.

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, FCA

Aged 65, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree from University of
Manchester, the United Kingdom in 1970 and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1973. He was the Company Secretary of the Group from
1974 to 1988 and has been a Director since 1977. Mr. Chan was the
Managing Director of YGM Trading Limited from 1987 to 2006 and the
Chief Executive Officer of YGM Trading Limited from 2006 to 2010.
He has been the Vice Chairman of the board of directors of YGM
Trading Limited since 2010. Mr. Chan was appointed as a director of
Gold Anomaly Limited (whose shares are listed on Australian Securities
Exchange) in January 2013 and as chairman of the board of directors of
Gold Anomaly Limited in March 2013. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau
and the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Ms. Chan Suk Ling,
Shirley.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEBAER

Chan Suk Ling, Shirley, |P

Madam Chan, is the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
of the YGM Trading Limited. She joined the Group in 1973 and was
appointed as the Director of the Group in 1983. Madam Chan has
extensive experience in the garment retail and wholesale business. She
is a Member of the BUD Fund Programme Management Committee of
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, a Council Member of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council, the Chairman of the Garment
Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a
Member of the Hong Kong-France Business Partnership Committee of
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, the First Vice-President of
the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, the Chairman
of the Hong Kong Brand Development Council, a Member of the Board
of Directors of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a Committee Member
of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Vice President of the Guangdong Association
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment and a Council Member of
City University of Hong Kong. She received a Bachelor’s degree from
Nottingham Trent University, United Kingdom in 1973. Madam Chan,
aged 62, is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the sister of Mr. Chan
Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing, Sun, Samuel.

So Ying Woon, Alan

Aged 63, Mr. So received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1974. Mr. So joined the Group in 1974 and
was promoted to the position of Sales Manager in 1976. He has been
the General Manager since 1993. Mr. So was appointed as Executive

Director of the Company in 2005.

Leung Hok Lim, FCPA(Aust.), CPA(Macau), FCPA(Practising)

Aged 78. Mr. Leung was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 1993. He is the founder and senior
partner of PKF, Accountants and Business Advisers. Mr. Leung is a non-
executive director of Beijing-Hong Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre
Limited, and an independent non-executive director of a number of
listed companies, namely YGM Trading Limited, Fujian Holdings Limited,
Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited, S E A Holdings Limited and

High Fashion International Limited.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 £E &R

R

ML+t RAYGMEZBAR LD ATHARK
BTES - RN -—NhEt=FMALXER -
—hWN=ZFHEREEES - RELETRAK
ZERMBEBERZ &R - RATEE
AITHRERFBUDERE S EEREESS
Z8 ERESLRRES BBEZUR
RHEREANEESTFE BERESER
BBLEZNHEEERE BBHER
BAHEEE—RER TEMERERE
FBERRERRRAESAME - PRAR
BAHBERRAETEEEERE  ERIME
REGCEBERERREBATAERE
8 o BR— N E=FEEENottingham
Trent University I B T84y - [RZ LT IRF
AtIE o AREREL TS RKES
£ RBRKER L Z Ik o

B pEE

ATZE HEER-NtEFEREER
PXRBELBN  HLEER-NLTF
MAREE  R—hWEREAEEXERE
B B-AN=ZFHEEHREEE - &AL
R-ZEZHFREZEARADANTES

REBR

Tt N\B REER-ANZFEREESR
RRABBIUFATES » WAPKFRERE
®R(BR)EHOSHEFZABARSRE
BA REEBTEBATRIRPLERDF
ZIBTES UAZHLEHLARAZEY
FHITES - BIEYGMEZERAT - BB
ERARAE - BEFRERERAF N
EEZERAERIBDRENBEREERRAF -



DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
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Lin Keping

Aged 74, Mr. Lin has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2004. Mr. Lin is an engineer, graduated
from Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1963. He
is a member of the Eighth National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and an executive member of the
Eighth All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce. He has served in
postal and telecommunication research institutes, the Ministry of Posts
and Telecommunications and other organisations for years, and was an
executive vice president of China Minsheng Bank Corp. Ltd. He is also an

Independent Non-executive Director of YGM Trading Limited.

Sze Cho Cheung, Michael, GBS, CBE, ISO, JP

Aged 68, Mr. Sze has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2010. He was a former Executive
Director of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a position
he held for eight years prior to his retirement on | May 2004. Before
that, he worked for 25 years in various capacities in the Hong Kong
Government. He is also an Independent Non-executive Directors of
Swire Pacific Limited and YGM Trading Limited. Mr. Sze resigned as
a non-executive director of Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd. in June 2010 and

currently acts as a consultant to the board of Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd.

Choi Ting Ki

Aged 58, Mr. Choi was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in December 2012. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member
of the Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Jing’an District, Shanghai, and Honorary Vice-Chairman
of the Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese of Jing’an District,
Shanghai. In 1978, Mr. Choi graduated from the Department of
Accounting of the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University). He joined KPMG in the same
year and has held various positions, including Deputy Manager and
Manager of the audit department of KPMG Hong Kong Office, Managing
Partner of KPMG Shanghai Office, Senior Partner of KPMG Huazhen
Shanghai Office as well as Senior Partner of KPMG Huazhen in Eastern
and Western China. Mr. Choi retired from KPMG Huazhen in April
2010. Mr. Choi was responsible for initial public offering projects for
a number of large Chinese domestic enterprises in China, Hong Kong
and overseas, as well as for various transactions for listed companies.
He possesses a wealth of professional knowledge and experience. Mr.
Choi is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Sinopec Shanghai

Petrochemical Company Limited and YGM Trading Limited.
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MANAGEMENT

Lau Shing Choy

Aged 65, Mr. Lau received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1969, and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree
from Case Western Reserve University, USA in 1978. Mr. Lau joined
the Group in 1978 to develop the China business. He is the Director of
Hong Kong Knitters Limited. He is the husband of Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Senoussi, Serge

Aged 48, is the Managing Director of Lavender Garment Limited and the
General Manager of liaison office in Bangladesh. Mr. Senoussi obtained
a Master’s degree in Econometrics in 1986 and a diploma in Scientific
Management Methods in 1987 from the University of Paris X Nanterre,
France. He joined the Company in 1993 to develop the business in

Bangladesh.

Leung Ming Wai, Alan

Aged 55, Mr. Leung is the General Manager of Sales Department and
obtained the diploma in Management Studies at Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and Master Degree in Business Administration at University of

Macau. He joined the Company as Sales Manager in 1986.

Chui Wai Ha, Catherine, MBA

Aged 51, Ms. Chui is the General Manager of Sales Department. Ms.
Chui joined the Group in 1994, and has over 25 years’ managerial
experience in fashion business. She was awarded Master of Business
Administration (Fashion Business) by the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2004.

Yung Choi Yin, Margaret

Aged 49, is the General Manager of Sales Department and received
a Bachelor's degree from RMIT University and a Master's degree in
Business Administration from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She

joined the Company in 1985.

Yip Chung On

Aged 50, Mr. Yip is the General Manager of Sales Department. Mr. Yip
joined the Company in 1982, and was promoted to Sales Manager on
1989. With wide range of both woven and knit experience in garment
sourcing and merchandizing, he was appointed as General Manager in
2005.

Hui Sau Ling

Aged 47, is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the
Group. She joined the Group in 2000 and has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting, treasury and company secretarial work. She is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants

and a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B %A RS

cblic

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 3| to 145, which comprise the consolidated
and Company balance sheets as at 3|1 March 2013, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 14| of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
R R T

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 June 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
e RS R

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
\E-B—=F= A=+—BILFE LOETAH)

2013 2012
—E—= —_E—_—F
Note $’000 $°000
i3 Fr Fr
Turnover BXE 3&12 1,333,068 1,750,673
Cost of sales HE A (1,110,978) (1,481,405)
Gross profit EF 222,090 269,268
Other revenue HpA 4 4,456 5,554
Other net income Hib = F 58 4 423 7,053
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (81,870) (93,911)
Administrative expenses THEA (72,444) (84,666)
Other operating expenses Hih&& & (33,382) (21,065)
Profit from operations KRR 39,273 82,233
Finance costs R & AR 5(a) (4,398) (5,799)
Share of losses of associates iR AN = (398) (192)
Share of (losses)/profits of jointly BihEaE AR (E1B) AR
controlled entities 18 (4,821) 7,522
Impairment loss on fixed assets BlEEEREEE 13(f) (8,504) =
Net valuation gains on investment REMEMLEW RS FHE
properties 13(a) 44,905 33,392
Profit before taxation Bk B4 A %= A 5 66,057 117,156
Income tax Fig® 6(a) (10,311) (12,823)
Profit for the year REERF 55,746 104,333
Attributable to: EEER
Equity shareholders of the Company ARABREREA 53,082 103,159
Non-controlling interests FEERRRER 2,664 1,174
Profit for the year REERF 55,746 104,333
Earnings per share BRER
Basic and diluted EXRREE I $0.26 $0.49
The notes on pages 40 to 145 form part of these financial statements. FABEZI4SENN B AR ERR 2 —

1D o
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company EAERATRESEE ANRKRESFBEIHRNH

attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 27(b). &F27(b) °

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A ¥



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
B 2 TH W R

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
Be—2 =F=A=+—HI5F (LETi)

2013 2012
—E—= —E-—-F
Note $’000 $000
i3 Fr Fr
Profit for the year AEERF 55,746 104,333
Other comprehensive income AFEHMEE KRS
for the year (after tax and (MBRHREREIAER)
reclassification adjustments) 10
Exchange differences on translation of:  [E % Z %8 :
— financial statements of —-BEFERIME QT
subsidiaries outside MR AMEL
Hong Kong ZERER 1,662 6,509
— share of associates’ and jointly - BEREBEEATR
controlled entities’ net assets EENTEEFRE 3,689 22,425
5,351 28,934
Revaluation of land and buildings held BEHMEREREMEZ
for own use upon transfer to BEEBRLRETF
investment properties, net of tax 2 NERBE - 14,231
Available-for-sale securities: AHHERS
net movement in the investment REEMREEEFER
revaluation reserve (984) 218
Cash flow hedges: REREHE M :
net movement in the hedging reserve R EEEEE 48 3,016
4,415 46,399
Total comprehensive income AEEZARFZEE
for the year 60,161 150,732
Attributable to: EEER:
Equity shareholders of the Company KATREFEA 57,300 149,822
Non-controlling interests FEERRRER 2,861 910
Total comprehensive income FEETHRZASHE
for the year 60,161 150,732
The notes on pages 40 to 145 form part of these financial statements. FHEZ 45BN B A BHRIT 2 — 320

7 o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

meEERRR

At 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

W-F—=F=A=1—HB (W &Ti

2013 2012
—E—= —_E—_—F
Note $°000 $°000
et Fr Fr
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BEEEE 13(a)
Investment properties REWME 213,783 168,616
Other property, plant and equipment  H ¥ % - BE R R H 87,599 102,397
Interest in leasehold land held for BEKEHEZB A
own use under operating leases HELTHh 1,727 1,776
303,109 272,789
Intangible assets EBRERE 14 3,117 3,117
Goodwill GRS 15 - -
Interests in associates i RN e 17 2,096 16
Interests in jointly controlled entities SERRER 18 610,118 611,270
Prepayment for fixed assets EEEERNTR 870 789
Other financial assets HihemEE 19 7,069 8,079
Deferred tax assets BEFEHERE 25(b)(iii) 2,454 11,328
928,833 907,388
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 78,340 127,345
Trade and other receivables P Uit B o B L At B WK 21 192,795 329,199
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAREZEEY 22 270,015 149,227
541,150 605,771
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables FE < BR 3% % HL At FE A 3K 23 150,810 221,304
Current tax payable FE A A HR B 18 25(a) 15,288 21,765
166,098 243,069
Net current assets REBEEFE 375,052 362,702
Total assets less current liabilities EBEZAERABER 1,303,885 1,270,090

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A ¥
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERER

At 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R —=5=p=+-8 (Lt

2013 2012
—E—= —E-—-F
Note $°000 $°000
et Fr Fr
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Provision for long service payments RERE & 24 26 22,915 33,108
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEHEE 25(b)(iii) 9,043 14,778
31,958 47,886
NET ASSETS BEZE 1,271,927 1,222,204
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXKEE
Share capital [ 27(c) 103,374 103,374
Reserves (i 1,160,646 1,115,751
Total equity attributable to equity ERFERALQTARE
shareholders of the Company HEAESHERE 1,264,020 1,219,125
Non-controlling interests IR R R 7,907 3,079
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 1,271,927 1,222,204
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 June EEECN -_E—=FEXA=-+—8%E&
2013. REEEMLEIERS -
Chan Sui Kau Chan Wing Kee R B BR PR K A5
Chairman Managing Director FE EET  rcgid
The notes on pages 40 to 145 form part of these financial statements. FABEZ 45BN EB R IEH R 2 — 30

7 o
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BALANCE SHEET
EERER

At 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W-E—=F=A=+—B (LUETH)

2013 2012
—E—= —_E—_—F
Note $’000 $’000
Hra FT Fr
Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets BEEEE 13(b)
Investment properties REWME 255,590 190,005
Other property, plant and equipment Htu#E - - BERZE 27,279 28,972
282,869 218,977
Intangible assets B ERE 14 3,117 3,117
Investments in subsidiaries MEARKRE 16 79,314 1,717
Interests in jointly controlled entities EEARIER 18 230,818 230,818
Other financial assets HismeERE 19 7,069 8,079
603,187 572,708
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 78 20 22,535 29,116
Trade and other receivables JE AT R R % EL it BB WK 21 205,237 284,493
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESEEY 22 142,387 61,504
370,159 375,113
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FE A3 BR TR % HL At FE 15 3K 23 59,178 95,360
Current tax payable A AR EAT 1 25(a) 147 583
59,325 95,943
Net current assets REBEEZEE 310,834 279,170
Total assets less current liabilities BEAFEBRBERSE 914,021 851,878

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A ¥



BALANCE SHEET
EERER

At 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R —=5=p=+-8 (Lt

2013 2012
—E—= —E-—-F
Note $’000 $°000
HtaE Fr F
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Provision for long service payments RERE & 24 26 1,708 2,843
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEHEE 25(b)(iii) 3,859 4,012
5,567 6,855
NET ASSETS BEZE 908,454 845,023
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARRFE 27(a)
Share capital [N 103,374 103,374
Reserves Ee] 805,080 741,649
TOTAL EQUITY RERAE 908,454 845,023
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 June EreoiN - =FEXA=-+—H&E
2013. REEEMLIERE -
Chan Sui Kau Chan Wing Kee PR I BR PR 7k #H
Chairman Managing Director Ey EEE T
The notes on pages 40 to 145 form part of these financial statements. FAEZI4SEHM B AR ERK 2 —

e

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 £E &R



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_F—=F=A=1+—HIFE (LETi)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ERBRALERAREA
Land and
Capital Goodwill  Investment  buildings Non-
Share Share redemption  Exchange  arisingon revaluation revaluation Hedging Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve consolidation reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
BE GRERK BE  1#EEP FERBR
BAx  REHEE REEE  EXRE EioEE ERBE  EMBE HMEE AR REX £ B EE4E

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
?/E [ 77 123 i 77 7z i 7 77 i i i
Note (Note 27(c)) ~ (Note 27(d)(i) ~ (Note 27(d)(i) ~ (Note 27(d)(i)) (Note 27(d)(i)) ~ (Note 27(d)(i)) ~ (Note 27(d)(y)) (Note 27(d)(vi)
() R WEZG) (BEgm) (i) (WEmdw) wEmgy) wEzdm)

Balanceat | April 011 RZF--FME-A24H 10508 102753 @08 (T m) 16805 (3.016) 36 a3 1016 6T L0340
Changes in equity for EREESE:

the year:

Profit for the year REERA - - S S = = - - - 103,159 103,159 1,174 104333

Other comprehensive income 22 E R 10 - - - 29,19 - 218 14231 3016 - - 4,663 (264) 4399
Total comprehensive income 2ENREE - - - 2919 - 218 14231 3016 - 103,159 149,822 910 150,732
Capital contribution from FERRRERRA

non-controling interest - - - - - - s 5 o = 5 49) 49)
Purchase of own shares BEANARS 27()()
- par value paid -eHEE (1810) - - - - - - - - - (1810) - (1810)
~ premium paid -BffEE = & = = = s = = - (5478) (5.478) = (5478)
Capital reduction on BEALRRAZE

repurchase of the Company's B2

shares () s s 1810 s & s S & o (1810) 5 o =
Dividends approved in respect ~ REAHERN - B

of the previous year HRE 27(b)i) S S > > S > o S o (21,037) (21,037) - (21,037)
Dividends declared in respect ~ AFEDERRE

of the current year (b)) - - - - - - - - - (4135) (4135) - (4135)
Balance at 31 March 2012~ W=F-Z£ZA=1-8R

and | April 2012 Z3-ZERA-BER 103,374 102,753 2091 139,966 (174 ) 31,036 - 7236 874,647 1219,125 3079 122,204
Changes in equity for FREERD:

the year:

Profit for the year RERET - - - - - - - - - 53,08 53,082 2664 55,746

Other comprehensive income £ 2EHE 10 - - - 5,154 - (984) - L] - - 4218 197 4415
Total comprehensive income 2R EEE - - - 5,154 - (984) - L] - 53,082 57300 2861 60,161
Capital contribution from FERRRERRA

non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - - - - 1967 1,967
Dividends approved in respect A AR L—FE

o the previous year HRE 7)) e g = e e = c = Sy (12409) - ()
Balance at 3 March 2013 H=§-ZFZAZ+-8

28 103,374 102,753 191 145,120 (42,174 (988) 31,03 48 723 915324 1264020 7907 1271927

The notes on pages 40 to 145 form part of these financial statements.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A ]
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

%: = IE: %l)lb

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B2 T —F=H="1—HIFFE (LET)
2013 2012
—E—= —E-—-F
Note $’000 $’000
HtaE Fr F
Operating activities KRETH
Cash generated from operations REXBRAERE 22(b) 160,670 38,715
Tax paid 2B E
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid —ENEBFER (13,623) (1,195)
— Tax (paid)/refunded outside —(Bff) JREE BTN
Hong Kong BB (24) 873
Net cash generated from RETBMENRESFE
operating activities 147,023 38,393
Investing activities REZEH
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets §& B EE & E TR (12,468) (25,732)
Payment for the purchase of BERFLEEMNN
intangible assets - (1,548)
Proceeds from disposals of plant and HEREREER
machinery and other fixed assets HihEEEEMENRE 381 3,862
Interest received 2T E 2,255 1,675
Dividends received from unlisted equity BUWF L HREZFF 2B E
securities 389 3,123
Payment for investment in an associate R —BiE AT RERK (2,460) -
Capital contribution from IR §§1§$&)\
non-controlling interests 1,967 492
Dividend received from a jointly EREEQARIZKRE
controlled entity - 29,072
Receipt of loans receivable iz (21 B U & X - 55
Net cash (used in)/generated from REE® (FTA), FEH
investing activities RE&FHE (9,936) 10,999

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 £E &R



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mERTRER

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B2 F—=—F=H=1—HIFFE (L&)

2013 2012
—E—= —_E—_—F
Note $’000 $’000
e Fr T
Financing activities & EE
Repayment of bank loans BEEIRITER (30,000) (410,000)
Proceeds from new bank loans HIBRITERPS R 30,000 410,000
Payment for repurchase of shares BE R 7 AR 27(c)(i) - (7,288)
Interest paid 2NFE (4,393) (6,052)
Dividends paid =313 (12,405) (25,172)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEFBMANRESFH (16,798) (38,512)
Net increase in cash and REeERASEEYEMFRE
cash equivalents 120,289 10,880
Cash and cash equivalents at the RENZREREALEEY
beginning of the year 149,227 137,086
Effect of foreign exchange MERGRBH o
rates changes 499 1,261
Cash and cash equivalents at REXZRERAELEEY
the end of the year 22(a) 270,015 149,227
The notes on pages 40 to 145 form part of these financial statements. FABEZI4SEM B AR EHRR 2 — 2
7 o

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE - —c=A=t-ALFE (WETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out

below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected

in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s

interests in associates and jointly controlled entities.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s

functional and presentation currency.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 £E &R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E=B—=F=A=1—BILFE GETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES l.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

TESTBER (&

(b) MBHBRNEREE (H)

(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

—  investment property (see note |(h)(i));

- financial instruments classified as available-for-sale

securities (see note |(f)); and

—  derivative financial instruments (see note 1(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in

note 32.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE - —c=A=t-ALFE (WETH)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights

that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions, and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent

that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s

net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and

the equity shareholders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

j:

—=F=HR= + HIEFE (///(/%751376

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss

is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note I(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly

controlled entity (see note |(d)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary

is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note |(k)).

Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and

operating policy decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a
contractual arrangement between the Group or the Company
and other parties, where the contractual arrangement
establishes that the Group or the Company and one or more
of the other parties share joint control over the economic

activity of the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BT —F=f[=+—HIFE (LETF)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(d) Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

An investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method and is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see notes I(e) and (k)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in

the associate or the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and jointly controlled
entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they

are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(d)

(e)

Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a jointly controlled entity, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note
I(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of

an investment in an associate (see note |(d)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associates and
jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note |(k)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s

previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(if)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and

liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

1 (k))-

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T =F=A=1+—RLLFE LET:)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

®

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, are as

follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price unless
fair value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except
where indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their

classification.

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends or
interest earned on these investments as these are recognised

in accordance with the policies set out in notes I(t)(iv) and

v).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment losses

(see note 1(k)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are recognised in the balance sheet at

cost less impairment losses (see note |(k)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

®

()

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the
above categories are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At each balance sheet date, the fair value is remeasured
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the investment revaluation reserve. Dividend income from
these investments is recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with policy set out in note I(t)(iv) and, where these
investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the policy set out in note I(t)(v). When
these investments are derecognised or impaired (see note
I(k)), the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to

profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they

expire.

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future transaction, the
effective portion of any gains or losses on remeasurement of
the derivative financial instrument to fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any

gain or loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability,
the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to be
included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the

non-financial asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T =F=A=1+—RLLFE LET:)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(8)

(h)

Cash flow hedges (continued)

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss in the same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss (such as

when interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same period or
periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects

profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from equity

to profit or loss immediately.

Fixed assets

(i) Investment properties
Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note I(j)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment

properties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(h) Fixed assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are stated at fair value unless they
are still in the course of construction or development
at the balance sheet date and their fair value cannot be
reliably determined at that time. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in
profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties

is accounted for as described in note [ (t)(iii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for
as if it were held under a finance lease, and the same
accounting policies are applied to other investment

properties leased under finance leases.

Other property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses (see note |(k)).

In preparing these financial statements, an advantage has
been taken of the provisions set out in paragraph 80A of
HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment, with the effect
that land and buildings which have been revalued in prior
years have not been revalued at the balance sheet date.
Such properties are stated at their carrying value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and will

not be revalued in future years.
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T =F=A=1+—RLLFE LET:)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(h) Fixed assets (continued)

(i)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

When an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property carried at fair value, the property is
revalued at the date of transfer. Any resulting decrease
in the carrying amount of the property is recognised
in profit or loss and any resulting increase in carrying
amount is recognised in other comprehensive income
and increase in the land and buildings revaluation

reserve.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the land and buildings revaluation reserve to

retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over

their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Leasehold land is depreciated on a straight-line

basis over the remaining term of the lease;
- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of the

lease and their estimated useful lives, being no

more than 40 years after the date of completion;

- Plant and machinery between 4 to 10 years; and

—  Other fixed assets between 3 to 5 years.
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(h)

()

Fixed assets (continued)

(i) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note [(k)).
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. Both the period and method of

amortisation are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue
to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out

above.
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T =F=A=1+—RLLFE LET:)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(j) Leased assets
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of

a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

= property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note |(h)(i)); and

= land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon
at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless the building
is also clearly held under an operating lease. For
these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the

Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included
in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost or valuation of the assets over the
term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the
Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of
the asset, as set out in note |(h). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note |(k). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining

balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified as

an investment property (see note |(h)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables
Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the

Group about one or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and
- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value

of an investment in an equity instrument below its

cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in subsidiaries, associates

and jointly controlled entities (including those
recognised using the equity method (see
note 1(d)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount in accordance
with note |(k)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note | (k)(ii).

= For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,

the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.

— For trade and other current receivables and

other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . FESFHBERHE
....... (CONUINUEA) || | i iieeenecneencecencencies ettt
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) EEREHE)
() Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and () EBERKEZFFRERAM
other receivables (continued) FEW % m 18 (4

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale equity securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets

is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

- other property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as

being held for own use under an operating lease;

—  intangible assets; and

—  goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T =F=A=1+—RLLFE LET:)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or

not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).

= Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment

loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at

the end of the financial year (see notes |(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and not

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T =F=A=1+—RLLFE LET:)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

0}

(m)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note I(k)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost

less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(n)

(o)

r)

(q)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest

method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note I(s)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are

stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within

three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(q9) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligations in respect of long service
payments are the amounts of future benefits that
employees have earned in return for their services in
the current and prior periods, calculated in accordance
with the relevant laws in Hong Kong and The People’s
Republic of China (“the PRC”).

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability

that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is

released directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(q)

)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iv)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan

which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE - —c=A=t-ALFE (WETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or
in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss can be

utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
== == A=t—ALLFE WETH)

=
£=—=

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note I(h)
(i), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the balance sheet date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related

dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(r) Income tax (continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 £E &R

. EESBER(F

R ()
RPFELEFMEBERRHEEH
HESMIIR XEFRFIHESE-
FPMELEREHEERSES
RARAEEBEETEREUS
SR EERERNBMEHRE
& LEAFEUTHEREHE
T+ 7 AT B B AR $5 7S B A
EFFEHRAE :

- FUFEHEENMER A
DNAHAKEFEIRFEE
EEE AEHBRZEE
MEEZRE H

- EBEMSHEENERE:E
LEENEBMERER—H
BB U T B —BEW
MAREHAR :

I
al

—EHEE R

- TENEHER ELERE
SEE A REBERSERE
ELEFREHAEFTREER
REEEFEHEE LK
CRHIRE - RFEEEER
RS HEENEELRE
FEsasE  AEKERZ
EENEEZAE-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E=B—=F=A=1—BILFE GETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance

with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income. Where
the guarantee is issued by the Company in respect of
the banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries, the
asset identified is a form of capital contribution, i.e. an

addition to the cost of the investment in the subsidiary.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note I(s)(ii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount

initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

. EESBER(F

(s) MBEREL BERIETAEE

()

HBEREL

BB EARIIERETA (B
ERANBERZEA (T
BADBEBEBEEARER
BEERTANKRRRE B
NRMEZHEK - MEEF
BAXNBERENELN -

fitg AN S [ 3% HH B IS AR - =%
BERNAFEE(AXZE
% BRIZAFEEERE
e fhET) RO BRH BN IR
R B A FE A5 R P9 O 3B SEE WY
A o fisl 1 B AT X B AR B LUER
A WELRE - R E AR
BEARZEEENAKER
R THR - MERRE
fef AR UL ER 2 B T URER - R
R EMIEE R AR - B
Bl X MBI TR o fig &<
DEFBTHMB L ARR
TREERLER  FEEMN
BEDLEEZRS - IR
MBARZRERA 218

N o

BROBERABELERANER
HERERFHRBEEAE
$H A P B H A B S IR IR
Ao BbSh s MO ERBFE A
BARRZBEERERLAE
EETER: Ri)AEER
REMNEARREEHEAR
RIIAZIERWEMERR
Hi AR (& AERN
SRR RFTEH) o Al
=1 (s) (i) FE R B4 o

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RATRKARA ]

67



68

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE - —c=A=t-ALFE (WETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)
(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability

of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(t) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises or when goods are shipped on
board which are taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of

any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
EZT-=F=A=t+—HLEFE (KETT)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(t) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Processing service income, management fee income and
commission income

Processing service income, management fee income and
commission income are recognised when the relevant

services are rendered.

Property rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is

established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T =F=A=1+—RLLFE LET:)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(t) Revenue recognition (continued)

(vi)  Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the balance sheet
initially when there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced

depreciation expense.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair

value was determined.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
== == A=t—ALLFE WETH)

=
£=—=

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(v)

{0

(w)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired on or after | January 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before | January 2005 is translated at the
foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of

the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or

loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period

in which they are incurred.

Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T =F=A=1+—RLLFE LET:)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(w) Related parties (continued)
(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in ().

(vii) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 8 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W E-_T-=F=A=1+—RLFE (L&)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(x) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Of these, the following development is relevant to

the Group’s financial statements:

- Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures —

Transfers of financial assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require certain disclosures
to be included in the financial statements in respect of
transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety and for any continuing involvement in
transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their
entirety, irrespective of when the related transfer transaction
occurred. However, an entity need not provide the
disclosures for the comparative period in the first year of
adoption. The Group did not have any significant transfers
of financial assets in previous periods or the current period
which require disclosure in the current accounting period

under the amendments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T =F=A=1+—RLLFE LET:)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has not applied any new standard or Interpretation that

is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

The Group early adopted the amendments to HKAS 12, Income
taxes — Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets in respect of the
recognition of deferred tax on investment properties carried at fair
value under HKAS 40, Investment Property, during the year ended 31
March 2012.

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale
of garments and textiles, provision of processing services and rental

of properties.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods supplied to
customers, processing service income and rental income. The
amount of each significant category of revenue recognised in

turnover during the year is as follows:
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2013 2012

—EB—-=fF —E-_F

$°000 $°000

FT FIT

Manufacture and sale of garments BENHERTK 1,304,726 1,716,736
Manufacture and sale of textiles HERHEEHBR 11,635 19,775
Processing service income N T BR A& Uk A 9,665 7,656
Property rental income L EX AN 7,042 6,506
1,333,068 1,750,673

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only two
customers (2012: two) with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group’s turnover. For the year ended 3| March 2013,
revenue from sales of garments to these customers, including
sales to entities which are known to the Group to be under
common control with these customers, amounted to approximately
$411,661,000 (2012: $614,404,000) and arose in all geographical
regions in which the manufacture and sale of garments and textiles
division is active. Details of concentrations of credit risk arising

from these customers are set out in note 28(a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 8 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-=F=A=t—RILFE (K ET)

4. OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME = 4. HMWARW=SZEE ..
2013 2012
—g-=% =—®-=%
$°000 $°000
Fr F
Other revenue Hilg A
Commission income AL N 566 654
Dividend income from unlisted FLEmRERSZ
equity securities B2 A 389 1,828
Interest income FE WA 2,255 1,675
Management fee income BEBRKA 804 804
Government grants BR#EBE 62 9
Sundry income Hihlgr A 380 584
4,456 5,554
Other net income Hih = #5
Net exchange (loss)/gain EX (58 WEgE (3,334) 1,615
Scrap income EERIA 2,012 2,378
Net (loss)/gain on disposals of fixed assets HEBREEE (BHR)/WEFHE (1,790) 3,004
Net claim income/(expenses) BEEWE () F8E 2,141 (684)
Recovery of receivables written off in W e LA 1T E i EE 2 FE U X
prior years 518 771
Sundry income/(loss) Hapg X (E#E) 876 3N
423 7,053

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—2—=F=A=1—H.5E (LUETH)

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5.

BR Bt Al 3 A

BREBLADEFIE (Gt ) (IR -

Profit before taxation is arrived at after (crediting)/charging:

2013 2012
—B—-=fF —E—=
$°000 $°000
Fr F
(a) Finance costs (a) BAE R A
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable ARIEFREBEHEEZ
within five years BITERFE
(including bank charges) (BERITER) 4,393 5,799
Other interest expenses HibFEE A 5 -
4,398 5,799
(b) Staff costs* (b) E TR A&
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHMEF 186,858 215,419
Contributions to defined BE HEGRIRE EIE R
76 contribution retirement schemes 14,335 14,408
(Reversal of)/provision for long service EHRES (EE)
payments, net (note 26) BBBEE (M E26) 981) 7,684
200,212 237,511
(c) Other items (c) Hft1E E
Cost of inventories? FE AR 1,110,978 1,481,405
Amortisation of pre-paid interests in FEAEE T FRIEN
leasehold land* b E ol 59 58
Depreciation* e 17,154 17,947
Net loss on cash flow hedging REZPTEENEERE
instruments reclassified from equity HHIEEBFE
(note 10(b)) (K1EE10(b)) - 4,272
Impairment loss on trade and other EWERHREMERRZ
receivables (note 21 (b)) WAERE (M211b)) 291 136
Impairment loss on amount due from B —HE ARREBEZ
an associate (note 21(d)) BB RSB (Mfa21(d) 4,171 -
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AT B &
— audit services — iR 1,729 1,736
— other services — H b B 7 210 193
1,939 1,929
Operating lease charges: KREHEER
minimum lease payments BREHETHRE
— property rentals” —-YEZHE 8,003 8,675
Rentals receivable from investment REMEEKRESHERE
properties less direct outgoings of % H1,312,0007T
$1,312,000 (2012: $1,917,000) (ZZ—=% :1,917,0007T) (5,730) (4,589)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-—=F=-RA=1—RLLFE LET)

#

Cost of inventories includes $109,469,000 (2012: $134,280,000)

relating to staff costs, amortisation of pre-paid interest in leasehold

land, depreciation and operating lease charges, which amount is also

included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above

for each of these types of expenses.

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT

(@)

BRI R R (&)

o BFERAEBEEINES  EMHEEL

WREBNEE TERECEHESE
A BREFIE 109,469,000 (=&
— 4 1 134,280,0005T) ° B EAEFEIR
ERAELXDHIRZEEERAE
FAMEEES -

RERBERATOFAE

Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents: () HEBBEXRPAITHAERS
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-C=F
$’000 $°000
Fr Fr
Current tax - REFE-
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBREH
Provision for the year RNEIBERE 7,891 10,681
(Over)/under-provision in respect of DEEE GBRERE)
prior years BERE (51) 323
7,840 11,004
Current tax — Outside Hong Kong AEHBE-FBRN
Provision for the year AEHBRME 30 2,256
Over-provision in respect of prior years LA{¥ F E B REE & (700) -
(670) 2,256
Deferred tax EL PS8
Origination and reversal ENEZENEER
of temporary differences e 3,141 (437)
10,311 12,823

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2013 is

calculated at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable

profits for the year.

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are charged at

the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant

jurisdictions.

—E-CHERBASHBERESR
FEZATTEIBEFLI65% (=F
—ZHF I 16.5%) IBLRETE o

FRRIIMBLR 2B IERUEET
EREBERACRITHETE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T - =F=-A=t—HILFE (K&T:)

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6. ZERBRMTNAER (&
....... INCOME STATEMENT (continued) | ... s
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at (b) FIEHRZEMEERNREAB
applicable tax rates: R EHH R
2013 2012
—E—-=fF —E—-=F
$’000 $°000
Fr Fr
Profit before taxation BR L AR R 66,057 117,156

Notional tax on profit before taxation, REBEMHBERESENH

calculated at the rates applicable to BAREGERBRAER

profits in the countries concerned HNEHEHE 9,224 17,904
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR X B R IELE 1,662 395
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BAGHRBRANRELE (6,560) (8,417)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not REINREARBHEN

recognised MEgE 7,757 45]5
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised in LEAFEE R ERERER

prior years but utilised during the year FRABBEENTEZE (129) (2,588)
Tax effect of undistributed profits of MEARREEDNARDE

subsidiaries and jointly controlled B 2 BRIE S

entities (1,132) 691
(Over)/under-provision in respect of LEFE GBREERE)

prior years BETE (751) 323
Others Hith 240 S
Actual tax expense ERBELH 10,311 12,823
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 8 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
EZT-=F=A=t+—HLEFE (KETT)

7...DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION ... 1. EZMs ...
Directors' remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the RIBBEBDIARGIE 6 1FZREME
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: WECEEMSUT :
2013
—E-=f
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2H
Ezne  RHEMER BT BATHEER CE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Chan Sui Kau Wi L4 30 1,361 1,200 - 2,591
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter BAXELE 30 2,541 1,025 = 3,596
Mr. Chan Wing Kee BRAHEE 30 2,541 1,550 = 4,121
Mr. Chan Wing To BAEEE 30 - 1,000 = 1,030
Ms. Chan Suk Man BRI Lt 30 1,549 1,000 60 2,639
Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel BRK&TLE 30 - - - 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley BRRE Z L 30 - - - 30
Mr. So Ying Woon, Alan BEEtE 30 1,394 700 62 2,186

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Mr. Leung Hok Lim REREE 160 - - - 160
Mr. Lin Keping MRFEE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael EAELE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Choi Ting Ki (appointed on ~ HEEL4 (R-F——F

10 December 2012) TZATHEZA) - - - - -

600 9,386 6,475 122 16,583

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T - =F=-A=t—HILFE (K&T:)

7...DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) ... 1. BZEM2 ) . ...
2012
—E-ZF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
=1

EZHe REMAEA MERAL  RIAGHEMHN EH
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
Fr F Fr Fr Fr

Executive directors HTEES
Mr. Chan Sui Kau RIRIREE 30 1,463 1,200 = 2,693
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter BAELRE 30 2,730 1,025 = 3,785
Mr. Chan Wing Kee BT E 30 2,730 1,550 50 4360
Mr. Chan Wing To BKELE 30 - 1,000 = 1,030
Ms. Chan Suk Man IRRX L 30 1,664 1,000 60 2,754
Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel Bk 54 30 - - - 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley BARREZ L 30 - - = 30
Mr. So Ying Woon, Alan HEBEE 30 1,394 600 62 2,086

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Mr. Leung Hok Lim REREE 160 - - - 160
Mr. Lin Keping LR i 80 - - - 80
Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael ikibed s 120 - - - 120
600 9,981 6,375 172 17,128
8. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS & BREMZAL ...
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2012: ERUMERSZATH OE(=F
five) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The —=%F hfy) RESE AEMEHE
emoluments of the other individual for the year ended 31 March BRMER7E -BE-F—=F=A
2013 are as follows: Et+-—HLEFEHMATZHMEALE
mT
2013
—E—=F
$°000
Fr
Salaries and other emoluments FekHMME 1,039
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 1,300
Retirement scheme contributions RIRFHEIHE R 47
2,386
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN
S %5 8 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-—=F=-RA=1—RLLFE LET)

TS

9. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 9. KAFREEEAELER
....... SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY . e,
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the ARNBREFEAREESEFEE
Company includes a profit of $76,772,000 (2012: $94,597,000) —EBIARDAMBEHEERNEF
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the 76,772,0007C (=& — Z £ : 94,597,000
Company. JT) °
Details of dividends paid and payable to equity shareholders of the ENRENTAARAREFEAZR
Company are set out in note 27(b). BEFBIIAME27() ©
10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME . ... . 19: M1 TT0st R
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other (a) Hit2EWKRENSAHERBH B
comprehensive income ge
2013 2012
ZE-ZE -2-Z
Before-tax Net-of-tax Before-tax Net-of-tax
amount  Tax expense amount amount  Tax expense amount
BRASE  BAXM BHALEE BHASE  BEXL  BHKEE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000
F i 7 Fr I I
Exchange differences on ERZER:
translation of:
— financial statements of subsidiaries -REEBEMEBLA
outside Hong Kong BERRFEECERER 1,662 - 1,662 6,509 = 6,509
- share of associates’ and jointly -REEEHENARAE
controlled entities net assets DAEEFE 3,689 - 3,089 2,425 - 22,425
5,351 - 5,351 28,934 - 28,934
Revaluation of land and buildings ~ EftEBARENEL
held for own use upon transfer to B LI REF
investment properties - - - 18,495 (4,264) 14231
Available-for-sale securities: AftHERS
Change in fair value recognised in EREIREEMRR
the investment revaluation reserve MATEESD
during the year (984) - (984) 218 - 218
Cash flow hedges: ReREHR:
Net movement in the hedging reserve S B ERBFE 57 ) 4 3402 (59%) 3016
Other comprehensive income B2 EYE 4,424 )] 4,415 51,259 (4,860) 46399
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

10. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued) 10, HftZE W (A) ...
(b) Components of other comprehensive income (b) HitZ2HUW & KAERBH
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-=F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Cash flow hedges: RERBEHM™ :
Effective portion of changes in fair FREIHEHIAEZEAN
value of hedging instruments HoMAFEEZY
recognised during the year 57 (354)
Reclassification adjustments for amounts E¥ D BAEEAEBE R
transferred to profit or loss: ZEH
- turnover —EXER = 4,272
— finance costs —RhE B A = (306)
Net deferred tax charged to other EEFTEHOEER
82 comprehensive income H {2 m U S AR BR 9) (596)

Net movement in the hedging reserve FREHMZEKER
during the year recognised in other RN PR EEEFE

comprehensive income 48 3,016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 8 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

W E_R—=F=A=+—BIFE (L&)

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the

profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$53,082,000 (2012: $103,159,000) and the weighted average
of 206,748,000 (2012: 208,531,000) ordinary shares in issue

during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(a) BRELXZEF

BEREXBFNDREERSE
REAQABDRERSE AEMLR
#153,082,000T (=& — = F :
103,159,0007t) R FRE BT H
i IR /9 10 #E 2 ¥5 206,748,000 %
(==& — =4 :208,531,0008%) 5t
B ZEBROMETIEUT
HERFE

Issued ordinary shares at | April

Effect of shares repurchased

(note 27(c)(i))

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares at 31 March

Diluted earnings per share

REA—HBHITH
ZBER

BEROHWEE
(KaE27(c)(i))

R=ZBA=+—BEBR
Y 0 #E S 19 8% 19 BB

The diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic

earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential

ordinary shares in existence during the years ended 3| March

2013 and 2012.

BBERIIMEFIIR G2 E
2013 2012
—E—= —E-C—F
*000 000
FhiE Fhi
206,748 210,369
- (1,838)
206,748 208,531

(b) SREBHEF

BE-Z—=FR=-FT—=-F=
A=+—-BLEER XEAEE
BESEREHIZEBR LS
REREFEGREERIER o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE—T - =F=A=t+—RILFE (L&)

e SEGMENT REPORTING. e
The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following three reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the following

reportable segments:

- Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles: this segment
covers the manufacture and sale of garment and textile

products, and provision of garment processing services.

= Interests in jointly controlled entities: the Group’s jointly
controlled entities engage in the manufacture and sale of

textile yarn products.

- Property leasing: this segment leases commercial and

industrial premises to generate rental income.

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the

following bases:

Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles and property
leasing segments

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of
intangible assets, interests in associates, other financial
assets, deferred tax assets, current tax recoverable and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all liabilities
managed directly by the segments with the exception
of current tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other

corporate liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 3% 3k 2% MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
\E-B—=F= A=+—BILFE LOETAH)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) . ... ... . 12, DEBEM)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (a) PWEE BEEREE(AE)

Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles and property
leasing segments (continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation

of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted
EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded
as including investment income and finance cost and
“depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on non-current assets. To arrive at
“adjusted EBITDA”, the Group’s earnings are further adjusted
for items not specifically attributed to individual segments,
such as share of profits less losses of associates, net valuation
gains on investment properties, auditors’ remuneration and

other head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
sales), interest income and finance costs from cash
balances and borrowings managed directly by the segments,
depreciation, amortisation, impairment losses and additions
to non-current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to

prices charged to external parties for similar orders.

Interests in jointly controlled entities

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method, and presented as a separate reportable
segment. The Group’s senior executive management reviews
the post-tax result of the interests in jointly controlled
entities, which is defined as the reportable segment profit
for this particular segment. Reportable segment assets
represent the Group’s share of net assets of the jointly
controlled entities. Revenue of jointly controlled entities is
not presented as reportable segment revenue because it is
not reviewed by the Group’s senior executive management

for resource allocation purposes.

HERFELRR i RYF
HE 58 (&)
TEHEAZHIMBIBRARZH
EUELEDMAEENRANZ
HEBRELDBNEENER
HSEMEENIHMmE -

ARBEDEMENZFTETER
[FARHBRAE - BiE - ERE
HANWE] TFANEIREEE
REWARBERAES MMFE
REBEIRRABEFRRBDEEN
HEEE - EERABNRF
B BUIR - B R S AT A e
B NS R R RME
Bl a2 BB (Pl BB D
A ZEAREE  REVEEM
WEFE LM ER MR
WMEEIEETHRAE) E—%
RERF -

BRESERAZRNRIE B
BHITERBHEANKRE 2D H
BN EREETESEREBRA
(BREIMEBBEE) B
HEREECREEARREEZ
MEWARBERAS  TE - #
#HBEBERIBAERANE
B2FRBOMEENER -2
MEHENERSZEMINEA
T2 BT EER -

BE LA R
FEERSERRAZERERS
BHBERRERERESTEAR
YWA—BIAT2/D IR -
FEESRITHREEAEERS
ENRRBENRBER ZEE It
BENIBEITERETE2HD
BEF e AF2|MOMEENRRK
EERGEAELARDEERE - A
RASESRITREEAEBRE
EHAENRHERNAFEER
DB HEERLRNEATE2R
DEBRATR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE - —c=A=t-ALFE (WETH)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) . .. ... . 12, DEBEM)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (a) PWEBE -BEEREE(H)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as BEZZE-—=FR=-ZZF—=-F=
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management A=1+T—BLEFE AEBEREH
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of FAREBRSTHREBEAEAE
segment performance for the years ended 31 March 2013 and BEEREIEMNDBPRETENET
2012 is set out below: Z2WRIFERMT :

Manufacture and sale of  Interests in jointly

garments and textiles  controlled entities Property leasing Total
HERHEAK
RA&Rm RENAER NERE BE

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE-ZF “%--f “E-=F “%--F “B-=F “Z--f -“B-=fF “B-Zf
$000 $000 $2000 $000 $000 $000 $2000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr

Revenue from external customers RESNREEHMA 1,326,026 1,744,167 = = 7,042 6506 1,333,068 1750673
Inter-segment revenue AHEBBERA - - - - 2,443 2443 2,443 2443
Reportable segment revenue AT 2HRMAPMA 1,326,026 1,744,167 = = 9,485 8949 1,335,511 1,753,116

Reportable segment profitl AT 2RH 2T
(loss) (adjusted EBITDA) %7/ (B#8)

(BEARAE

HEER

L ERRL ) 59256 89960  (4821) 752 8T 6798 62,608 104280
Interest income FEBA 2,255 1,675 - - - - 2,255 1,675
Finance costs RERA (4398)  (5799) S = = - (4398)  (5799)
Depreciation and amortisation 78 R 8 (17,213) (18,005 - = - - (IT,213) (18,005
Impairment loss on fixed assets & & ZHEFE (8,504) - - - - - (8,504) -

Reportable segment assets AF2HNFPEE 630,932 710261 610,118 611,270 300,361 233,650 1,541,411 1,555,181
Additions to non-current segment B R MR

assets during the year PENERE 12,468 25,732 - - - - 12,468 25,732
Reportable segment liabilities ZF2HMAHEE 172,218 252971 - = - - 11218 252970
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E-F—=F=A=1—BILEE (KBTI

33

+=—=

12,

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit

or loss, assets and liabilities

DHH|E ()

(b) BEFEHRRMNDIBWA ~ BERIRE
B -BEREBBZHER

2013 2012
—EB-=5F —E—_—F
$’000 $°000
Fr Fr
Revenue KA
Reportable segment revenue BETE2HRMNDBBA 1,335,511 1,753,116
Elimination of inter-segment revenue DEPEB B AR E I 8H (2,443) (2,443)
Consolidated turnover FE N ] 1,333,068 1,750,673
Profit i F
Reportable segment profit derived from RE&KEBENREFN D HE

Group’s external customers (adjusted F(FREMBRFE ~ HE -

EBITDA) mERBHEAMKR) 62,608 104,280
Finance costs & A (4,398) (5,799)
Share of losses of associates FEALEE N BB A (398) (192)
Impairment loss on fixed assets EEEERERE (8,504) -
Net valuation gains on investment REVMEMLEWRSFHE

properties 44,905 33,392
Other revenue and net income HW AR EMmk R FEEE 4,879 12,607
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (17,213) (18,005)
Unallocated head office and corporate ROBBHREEER

expenses (15,822) (9,127)
Consolidated profit before taxation AR AR R 66,057 117,156
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T =F=A=1+—RLLFE LET:)

12, D8RS (H)

(b) EFERHIHWA ~ BRHE
B-EEREBZHER (H)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit

or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

88

2013 2012
=F—= —E——fF
$’000 $°000
Fr F
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BETERNDIBEE 1,541,411 1,555,181
Elimination of inter-segment assets PHEKRBEEEGEHE (86,578) (65,034)
1,454,833 1,490,147
Intangible assets BLERE 3,117 3,117
Interests in associates Bt N E R 2,096 16
Other financial assets HithedmEE 7,069 8,079
Deferred tax assets EIEFFIEHREE 2,454 11,328
Unallocated head office and ROBEBREEEE
corporate assets 414 472
Consolidated total assets REEEHRT 1,469,983 1,513,159
Liabilities =F
Reportable segment liabilities BFERNIHES 172,278 252,971
Current tax payable B A PREH 15,288 21,765
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEHRERE 9,043 14,778
Unallocated head office and ROBRIREEEE
corporate liabilities 1,447 1,441
Consolidated total liabilities mEB BB 198,056 290,955
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 3% 3k 2% MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
== == A=t—ALLFE WETH)

=
£=—=

(©)

Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers and (ii) the Group’s fixed assets, intangible assets,
goodwill, interests in associates and jointly controlled entities
and prepayment for fixed assets (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of customers is based
on the location at which the services were provided or the
goods delivered. The geographical location of the specified
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the
asset, in the case of fixed assets, the location of the operation
to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets
and goodwill, and the location of operations, in the case of

interests in associates and jointly controlled entities.

12, D3B8 E ()

(c) HESHER

TREJNEBG)EAEERB IR
EEHRBA RIVAEEREE
E-BFEE -BE REEAQ
AREGERTAIRZREETEER
IR HBEFRRBDEE] NibE
DEER o B F ATEHIRIZHR
BREABWMBME - FEHR

BEEDNWEEEEMEHERE
BEENEBNENE  BFEEE
REEBRAESENEEmEm
T MRBEARREE N AE
AT EMAREEEMEmE

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMREFHBA BEERBEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E2-= —E--F ZE-= —E-CF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr F
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BBAREEHLH) 95,704 102,674 194,742 152,423
Europe &M
— United Kingdom - RKH 209,110 294,059 - =
— France - 10,126 3,958 = =
— Other European countries - HtBUNE R 413,003 580,436 - -
Mainland China lEbN 203,662 288,503 717,132 733,019
North America LM 204,330 272,434 = =
Others Hith 197,133 208,609 7,436 2,539
1,237,364 1,647,999 724,568 735,558
1,333,068 1,750,673 919,310 887,981

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B

= —F —

+=—=

13. FIXED ASSETS

(@)

=F=A=1+—HItFE (L ET)

13. B EEE

The Group (@) &%
Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for  Plant and Other Investment  operating
ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
#fER BERE
L BE Bt BEZER
kEF k#E ETEE Mt REME HELH EH
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r Fr Fz r Fr r r
Cost or valuation: RAHfEE
At | April 2011 RZZ--EMA-H 98016 187,232 98,914 384,162 105,056 2,836 492,054
Exchange adjustments ERE 1,884 6,189 2,132 10,205 1,062 107 11,374
Additions BE - 14,135 14,081 28216 - - 28,216
Disposals LE - (1,354) (3,882) (5,236) = = (5.236)
Transfer to investment BERERENE
properties (14,425) - - (14,425) 10,611 - (3.814)
Revaluation on transfer EBREER - - - - 18,495 - 18,495
Fair value adjustment NYEERR = = = = 33,392 = 33392
At 31 March 2012 R-B-ZF
=A=t+-H 85,475 206,202 I11,245 402,972 168,616 2,943 574,481
Representing: &
Cost A 61,709 206202 1245 379,156 - 2943 382,09
Valuation - 1988 B -—ANNE 213766 - - 23,766 - - 23,766
Valuation - 2012 fiE -=%-ZF = = = = 168,616 - 168,616
85,475 206,202 [11,245 402,912 168,616 2,943 574,481
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

33

= —F

+=—=

=®=RA=1+—HIFE (X&)

(a) The Group (continued)

13. BIEEE (&)

() =&EE(H)

Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for  Plant and Other Investment  operating
ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
#fEaER BERE
i BE Bt BEZER
REF k#E BETEE Mt REWE HELH EH
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r Fr r r Fr r r
Cost or valuation: RAHfEE
At | April 2012 RZB-ZFMA-F 85475 206,202 111,245 402,922 168,616 2943 574,481
Exchange adjustments ERAR 260 1,337 568 2,165 262 17 2,444
Additions BE = 4330 8,057 12,387 - - 12,387
Disposals HE - (778) (3,283) (4,061 = = (4,061)
Fair value adjustment AYEERR = = = = 44,905 = 44,905
At 31 March 2013 R-B-=%
=A=t+-H 85,735 211,091 116,587 413413 213,783 2,960 630,156
Representing: &
Cost AR 6199 211091 116,587 389,647 - 2960 392607
Valuation - 1988 hE -—ANNE 23766 - - 23,766 - - 23,766
Valuation -2013 fiE -=%-=% = = = = 213,783 - 213,783
85,735 211,091 116,587 413413 213,783 2,960 630,156

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

s —

==

=<

=F=A=1+—HItFE (L ET)

(a) The Group (continued)

13. BIEEE (#)

() =&EE(#F)

Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for  Plant and Other Investment  operating
ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
BEER BERE
fit HE Bt HEZAR
kEF k#E EEEE P RENE BELHM R
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr z Fr Fr r Fr
Accumulated amortisation, ZiT#%  TER
depreciation and HE:
impairment:
At | April 2011 RZZ--f0A-8 4720 154,050 85,114 282,884 - 1,068 283,952
Exchange adjustments B R AR 899 5,120 1,867 7,886 - 4| 1927
Charge for the year KrEERHERTE 2,603 6,706 8,638 17,947 = 58 18,005
Weritten back on disposals HEREE - (1,91) (3,087) (4378) S S (4378)
Written back on transfer o~ BB Z RGN EE
investment properties e (3.814) = = (3.814) = - (3,814
At 31 March 2012 R-B-ZF
=A=t+-H 43,408 164,585 92,532 300,525 - l,167 301,692
At | April 2012 RZZ-ZFMA-A 43408 164,585 92,532 300,525 - l,167 301,692
Exchange adjustments ERAR 151 988 382 1,521 - 7 1,528
Charge for the year REEBHRTE 2,303 6,955 7,896 17,154 = 59 17,213
Weritten back on disposals HERERD - (743) (1,147) (1,890) = = (1,890)
Impairment loss HEESE - 8,504 - 8,504 - - 8,504
At 31 March 2013 R-F-Z=F
=A=t+-H 45,862 180,289 99,663 325814 - 1,233 327,047
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2013 R-B-ZF
=A=t+-H 39,873 30,802 16,924 87,599 213,783 1,727 303,109
At 31 March 2012 RZB-ZF
=A=t+-H 42,067 41,617 18,713 102,397 168,616 1,776 272,789
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

33

= —F

+=—=

—F=ZA=1+—HItEFEE L ET)

13. BIEEE (&)

93

(b) The Company (b) AAF
Land and
buildings
held for Plant and Other Investment
ownuse  machinery fixed assets Sub-total properties Total
BEEAN MR Hit
THREF R BEEEE by RENE £t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
fr fr fr fr fr Fr
Cost or valuation: BAGfE
At | April 2011 RZE--FMA-H 41,741 146 26,878 68,765 131,181 199,946
Additions BE = = 961 961 = 961
Transfer from investment EHBREYE
properties 5,062 - - 5,062 (5,062) -
Transfer to investment ~ ERZRENE
properties (3,527) = = (3,527) 2,264 (1,263)
Revaluation on transfer ~ EEBE B - - S = 10,064 10,064
Fair value adjustment AVEERE - - - - 51,558 51,558
At 31 March 2012 R-E--“£=f=1-H 43276 146 27,839 71,261 190,005 261,266
Representing: &
Cost BA 28714 146 27,839 56,699 S 56,699
Valuation - 1988 58 -—-ANNE 14,562 = = 14,562 = 14,562
Valuation - 2012 ft -—F-Z% - - S = 190,005 190,005
43276 146 27,839 71,261 190,005 261,266
Cost or valuation: BASfHE
At | April 2012 RZE-Z&WA-H 43276 146 27,839 71,261 190,005 261,266
Additions ®E = = 340 340 L 340
Fair value adjustment NIEERE - - - - 65,585 65,585
At 31 March 2013 RZE-ZF=fA=+-H 43276 146 28,179 71,601 255,590 327,191
Representing: %
Cost BA 28714 146 28,179 57,039 = 57,039
Valuation - 1988 58 -—-ANN\E 14,562 = = 14,562 = 14,562
Valuation - 2013 ftE --%-=% - - S S 255,590 255,590
43276 146 28,179 71,601 255,590 327,191

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A ]



94

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T =F=A=1+—RLLFE LET:)

(b) The Company (continued)

(©

13. BIEEE (#)

(b) &7\ (HF)

Land and
buildings
held for Plant and Other Investment
ownuse  machinery fixed assets Sub-total properties Total
BEERD BE At
IHRETF R EE&E Pt RENE CH
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Accumulated ZitEH - ERAE:
amortisation,
depreciation and
impairment:
At | April 2011 R=Z--§MA-H 15,303 146 22,178 37,627 - 37,627
Charge for the year TEERHERIE 3,600 = 2,325 5925 = 5925
Written back on transfer B ZRENERER
to investment properties (1,263) - - (1,263) - (1,263)
At 31 March 2012 R-E--8=A=1+-H 17,640 146 24,503 42,289 - 42,289
At | April 2012 R-Z--£MA-A 17,640 146 24,503 42,289 - 42,289
Charge for the year TEEBHRIE 724 - 1,309 2,033 = 2,033
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=8=A=1-H 18,364 146 25,812 44,322 - 44,322
Net book value: RERE
At 31 March 2013 RZB-Z§ZA=1-H 24912 - 2,367 27,279 255,590 282,869
At 31 March 2012 RZZ-Z#=ZfA=+-H 25,636 - 3,336 28972 190,005 218977

Revaluation of investment properties

All investment properties of the Group and the Company

were revalued as at 31 March 2013 on an open market value

basis calculated by reference to net rental income allowing

for reversionary income potential. The valuations were

carried out by independent firms of surveyors, Knight Frank

Petty Limited and RHL Appraisal Limited, who have among

their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

with recent experience in the location and category of the

properties being valued.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-—=F=-RA=1—RLLFE LET)

(d) The analysis of net book value of properties is as

follows:

13. BIEEE (&)

(d) MEZREFREDHOT :

The Group The Company
EN - ARH
2013 2012 2013 2012
—g-= —E-Z§ ZEB-= —E-CF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Medium term leases R L
- in Hong Kong -&8 190,658 147,245 280,502 215,641
— outside Hong Kong -BEBRN 64,725 65,214 - -
255,383 212,459 280,502 215,641
Representing: K&
Land and buildings TREF 39,873 42,067 24,912 25,636
Investment properties REME 213,783 168,616 255,590 190,005
253,656 210,683 280,502 215,641
Interest in leasehold land BEKEHREZ
held for own use under BREELH
operating leases 1,727 1,776 - -
255,383 212,459 280,502 215,641

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RALRRAT R w]

83



96

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—2—=F=A=1—H.5E (LUETH)

(e)

U]

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

The Group and the Company lease out investment properties
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to seven years, with an option to renew the
lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property are

classified as investment properties.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

13. BIEEE (#)

(e) URBHEANHLENEETEE

AEBRAAAURERESYN
HAREMHE - HESNIH—
RAE-—S2tF YEEEEE
EHRREBEELN  ERAAEROK
REYEHHE - MEHESHL
TREXEEE -

FENEREMEERALER
ERENMEI D BRIREME -

AEBRBEFAITHBRNLERE
HBEAEWNBRERAENHEL
BT

2013 2012
—E-=fF —F—-=
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Within | year —FR 7,845 7,722
After | year but within 5 years —F#ERFR 3,147 9,235
More than 5 years AFEUE - 442
10,992 17,399
Impairment loss on fixed assets H BEEEEREBEESE

During the year ended 3| March 2013, the Group
underwent a restructuring of its operations in the PRC for
the manufacture and sale of garments and textiles division
pursuant to which certain factories were relocated and
certain fixed assets have since become idle. Management
assessed the recoverable amounts of the Group’s fixed assets
taking into consideration the usability of those fixed assets. As
a result of this assessment, an impairment loss of $8,504,000
(2012: $Nil) was recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 3| March 2013. The estimates
of recoverable amount were based on the assets’ fair values

less costs to sell, determined by reference to the recent

transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-—=F=-RA=1—RLLFE LET)

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

14, BILEE

Club debentures =i
The Group The Company
r5H b WA
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= ZE-Zf ZB-Z= ZE-ZF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
F Fr Fr Fr
At the beginning of the year REF 1] 3,117 1,569 3,117 1,569
Additions 12 - 1,548 - 1,548
At the end of the year RER 3,117 3,117 3,117 3,117

The directors consider that the recoverable amount of the
club debentures exceeds its carrying amount and therefore no
impairment is necessary. The recoverable amount of the club
debentures is estimated by reference to its current open market

value less cost to sell as at 31 March 2013 and 2012.

EERASECTHEHERBHE
HE EmMAZEEFLERE BEE
E2UREHEDLDSEHR-ZE—=
FR-ZZ-—-ZF=ZA=+—H2Z2AH
THEEBEREERL -

13: GOODWILL 5. B e,
The Group
&
2013 2012
—B—-=F —_Eg2—=
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Cost: o
At the beginning and the end REDRFL
of the year 2,177 2,177
Accumulated amortisation and ZitBHRAEERSE
impairment losses:
At the beginning and the end REDRFEL
of the year 2,177 2,177
Carrying amount: IRE&%E:
At the beginning and the end REDRER
of the year = -

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE - —c=A=t-ALFE (WETH)

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES ... . 6. MMBARKRE ...
The Company
AT
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—=
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Unlisted shares, at cost FELEHRG  BAEAR 32,245 32,245
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE W bt 18 1 =) FRIE 68,181 100,584
100,426 132,829
Less: Impairment loss o OREEE (21,112) (21,112)
79,314 11,717

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
not expected to be recoverable within one year from the balance

sheet date.

Impairment losses on investments in subsidiaries represent the
write down of the carrying values of the investment cost and

receivables from certain subsidiaries to their recoverable amounts.

The particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group at 3|1 March 2013 are as follows.

The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

MBABMRARERRBEF  TF
ME YFEHREEBE - FARAFTER
[E] o

MEBARRENHEBRERIRE
AR EWETHE QR RENIRE
EEHETWEHE -

RZZE-—=ZF=ZA=+t—-H ' '#EXE
BxX&E EENEBEREAREZE
EMBARHBNT -BREEFEH
S A ZRDEAEER -

Place of Issued and  Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ paid up share interest held by
establishment  capitallregistered the the
Name of company and operation capital Group Company Principal activity
084 ERITRAR FEREZAIL
ALET REELS BE,/ EREX xEE LN TEXER
Whampoa Textile Limited Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
EHIGAERLA BB REZR
Hong Kong Knitters Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Garment
ERBERRAT EB manufacturing and

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 £E &R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 8 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
EZT-=F=A=t+—HLEFE (KETT)

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) = 6. NBARREM. ...
Place of Issued and Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ paid up share interest held by
establishment  capitallregistered the the
Name of company and operation capital Group Company Principal activity
30 Vo ERITRAR EREZAIL

ARER REEHY BE,/EREX rEE LN TEXH
Easeley Knitwear Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 - Garment
RIS ERERD ® E# manufacturing
RKEE

Exquisite Knitters (Guangzhou) The PRC HK$75,600,000 100 - Knitting and dyeing
Limited FE of fabrics and
aHEE (BN BRA AR manufacturing
of garments

WREE R

A REE

Whampoa Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$17,800,000 100 - Garment
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd FE manufacturing
ERIAX(EMBRAT MR RE
Whampoa Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$18,000,000 100 - Garment
(Guigang) Co., Ltd H manufacturing
BERIRK(EB)ARAF BRHE
Whampoa Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$4,000,000 100 - Garment
(Guangxi) Co., Ltd H manufacturing
BERIHK(EE) AR A R RE
Lavender Garment Limited Bangladesh Taka35,511,050 69 - Garment
) manufacturing

RRRE

Vestis Limited United Kingdom GBP2 100 100 Garment wholesaling
e PR B
L2 These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in # ZERARARPERIZENIBEDE -

i

the PRC. The English translation of the names is for reference only. SREGUPEEEM XXHEN
The official names of these entities are in Chinese. EFEMBEZ

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A ]



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T =F=A=1+—RLLFE LET:)

AT INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES s 7. BMERRARE
The Group
rEHE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—=

$°000 $°000

Fr Fr

Share of net assets EhREEFEE 2,096 16
(a) The particulars of the associates at 31 March 2013, which are (a) RZE—=%=F=+—HzH#
unlisted entities, are as follows. The class of shares held is ENT(BIELETAT) 2= Em
ordinary unless otherwise stated. T -BRBAEFHEIN FIFEEZR

HHEEEBR -

Percentage of ownership

Place of interest held by
100 establishment the the

Name of company and operation Group Company Principal activity

Bz BEREBESL
DNEEB REEH R REE ZNN FTEXEH
Guangzhou Top Yield The PRC 333 - Garment
Garment Limited Y manufacturing
EMEBRKXERDF B BE
Guangdong Xi Mu Industrial The PRC 20 - Garment
Company Limited HE manufacturing
BRABEXFR QA" and retailing

L The associates are a sino-foreign equity joint ventures #

EMERNT /NP EKL 2P
BREEDRE ZLEAPXEEE
RKXBENEZERSE -

established in the PRC. The English translation of the names is

20

for reference only. The official names of these entities are in

Chinese.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-=F=A=t—RILFE (K ET)

(b) Summary of financial information on associates

17, B N TR ()

(b) BEQRAPBERYE

Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Loss
&E &fE R A iR
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr F For For Fr
2013 —®—=fF
100 per cent BAZ—H 17,350 (17,073) (277) 24,120 (2,239)
Group’s effective rEEERER
interest 4,871 (4,853) (18) 6,275 (491)
2012 —EB-——f
100 per cent BoZ—H 8,720 (8,673) (47) 7,602 (577)
Group’s effective rEEERESR
interest 2,907 (2,891) (16) 2,534 (192)
18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 18. B N AER
....... BN T TS s oottt ettt nanannn
The Group The Company
B e ARH
2013 2012 2013 2012
=2—= ZE-Zf ZEB-Z —E-C—fF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Unlisted investments, at cost FLHRE  BRAE - - 230,818 230,818
Share of net assets EREEFE 610,118 611,270 = =
610,118 611,270 230,818 230,818

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 18. B DT (&

Details of the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities at 31 H=
March 2013 are as follows: REERTAEZZERFEINT :

Percentage of ownership

Place of interest held by
establishment the the
Name of company and operation Group Company Principal activity
oA BREEZBEOIL
REEH R TEE /N TEER
Wouxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd The PRC 49 49 Investment holding
EBH-RREFRAA hE REZR
Taizhou Changxin Textile The PRC 49 - Manufacturing of
(Xinghua) Co., Ltd FE textile products
FINRFHE (BL) BRQF* 8 i B
102

Allied Textiles Co., Ltd The PRC 49 - Manufacturing of
R BE R A\ HE garments and textiles
BRAK % 45 8 L3
Wouxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd The PRC 49 - Manufacture and
BERIBEHBERA T P E sale of textiles
HEREEHER
Dongtai NAA Textiles Co., Ltd The PRC 49 - Manufacturing of
RAFRGBAE R HE garments and textiles
FR AR B 4 48 mm B
Wouxi Flex Textile Co., Ltd The PRC 36.75 - Trading of
ESERETAH B mA R A 7] FE textiles
EALE e

& Wholly owned subsidiaries of Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd * w|iE—IRREBRARNZEEHEEN

=N
#k Subsidiary of Allied Textiles Co., Ltd which holds 75% of ownership wk HEEAGSERATZHBLAT B
interest BH7S%E =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 8 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-—=F=-RA=1—RLLFE LET)

18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

All of the jointly controlled entities are sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in the PRC. The English translation of the
names of all of the jointly controlled entities is for reference only.

The official names of these entities are in Chinese.

Summary of financial information on the jointly controlled

entities — Group’s effective interest:

BaEM AXBENEZEH#SE -

EELATRUBERNESE - XEEER
e

2013 2012

—E2-=F —E——F

$°000 $000

Fr Fr

Non-current assets FREBERE 602,984 648,797
Current assets REEE 386,769 377,650
Non-current liabilities FREEE (13,116) (15,452)
Current liabilities REBAE (366,519) (399,725)
Net assets EEFEE 610,118 611,270
Income ['ON 818,091 842,986
Expenses Z (822,912) (835,464)
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (FE) EF (4,821) 7,522

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T - =F=-A=t—HILFE (K&T:)

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS .. 19. HteMEE
The Group The Company
XEH AN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E—C —E—= —E—
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Held-to-maturity debt securities: BEZHHMEEES
Listed outside Hong Kong BEBEHNLET 1,940 1,940 1,940 1,940
Available-for-sale equity securities: AREERERS
Unlisted, at cost FLEW o BERAE 3,028 3,028 855 855
Listed outside Hong Kong, BEREHNLEH  EHE
at market value 4,274 5,284 4,274 5,284
104
7,302 8,312 5,129 6,139
9,242 10,252 7,069 8,079
Less: Impairment loss B OHEESR (2,173) (2,173) - -
7,069 8,079 7,069 8,079
Market value of listed securities tmEEmE 6,319 7,291 6,319 7,291
Fair value of individually BRIREZ THEE
impaired available-for-sale BREEZES 2 ATERE
equity securities 3,725 4,859 3,725 4,859
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 3% 3k 2% MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E=B—=F=A=1—BILFE GETH)

20. INVENTORIES i, 20 EE
(a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise: () FERBEEGBXREE:
The Group The Company
rEHE ¥ N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —E--f CZE-=f CZE-ZF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
FI Fr FT Fr
Raw materials R A1t 14,129 23,576 324 749
Work in progress R 53,223 84,071 17,270 23,647
Finished goods HRm 10,988 19,698 4,941 4,720
78,340 127,345 22,535 29,116
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised (b) FEHBEIEZHRBELEER
as an expense and included in profit or loss is as AWDHWT :
follows:
The Group
xE
2013 2012
—B—-=fF —E-_F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Carrying amount of inventories sold FEHEREE 1,121,959 1,475,134
Write-down of inventories FE MR 364 8,556
Reversal of write-down of inventories 75 MOR B Bl (11,345) (2,285)
1,110,978 1,481,405
The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years BAEEEZFEMOBER JIRE KK
arose due to an increase in the net realisable value of garment ERREARREELZFTENEE
products by reference to the sales made during the year and MEHZEERUESR FEMNGTIE
subsequent to the year end. HNPT L o

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES ... ...  2L. CERRRR B
The Group The Company
r& NG
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —E--F ZB-= -2z
$°000 $:000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr F
Trade debtors FE W BR 3R 89,716 163,391 21,295 31,317
Bills receivable BB RE 61,334 110,855 32,688 60,400
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts A RBRBE (3,753) (6,283) (8) (235)
147,297 267,963 53,975 91,482
Deposits, prepayments and e BERK
other debtors Hi R 41,481 52,681 12,171 16,657
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE WL Fft 1B 1 Bl 008 - - 138,784 176,048
Amounts due from related FEWEEQRRE
106 companies (note 31(c)) (HtEE31(c) 2,490 4,238 255 306
Amounts due from jointly WA E D RTNE
controlled entities (note 31(c)) (H1#31(c)) 1,475 1,466 - =
Amount due from an associate EW—HENT
(note 31(c)) (Bt&E31(c) - 2,851 = =
Derivative financial instruments BEEREEREYH
held as cash flow hedging ZITESMIA
instruments (note 28(c)(i)) (HtEE28(c)(i) 52 - 52 =
192,795 329,199 205,237 284,493

Substantially all of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and other

receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as an

expense within one year.

The amounts due from subsidiaries,

controlled entities and an associate are unsecured,

and recoverable on demand.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 £E &R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-—=F=-RA=1—RLLFE LET)

(a) Ageing analysis

As of the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of trade

debtors and bills receivable (which are included in trade

and other receivables), based on the invoice date and net of

allowance of doubtful debts, is as follows:

(a) BRERDHT

REHER  REXRZAHRAK
RRREB B RO BBIRAR R B
SR (Bt ABWERRRHME

W) B BRER AT T

The Group The Company
rEE NG

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —E--f ZEB-= —E-C-F
$°000 $000 $°000 $°000
F F Fr F
Within | month —f@AUR 61,751 145,409 16,054 37,202
| to 2 months —ZZf@A 24,944 62,455 9,753 22,261
2 to 3 months —Z={EA 45,001 41,417 23,010 24,892
3 to 4 months =ZMEA 10,998 12,946 4,067 4,476
Over 4 months mEA UL 4,603 5,736 1,091 2,651
147,297 267,963 53,975 91,482

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due between 30 to 120

days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s

credit policy are set out in note 28(a).

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A ]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE - —c=A=t-ALFE (WETH)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) =~ 21, BURAREwBUK (A) .
(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable (b) BEWERREEKREERE

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills TMEWERRREREE ZRHES

receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless B AEESEINEBERYD -

the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, WMEAEEEEBZ KB RE

in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade A REMBE  HBEBESE

debtors and bills receivable directly (see note | (k)(i)). 12 7 JE U BR TR R FE U ZE 45 AP R 8

(BBEMHEE()()) °

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the FARZREBEENEE (BEHE
year, including both specific and collective loss components, is BREEEBEZRMD)WMT :
as follows:
The Group The Company
r&HE ARH
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —E--F ZEB-= —g-=
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
At the beginning of the year REL 6,283 6,284 235 263
Impairment loss recognised/ REBEZER/

(reversed) (note 5(c)) (@) (M725(c) 291 136 291 (28)
Uncollectible amounts written off M T E &5 (2,821) (137) (518) =
At the end of the year REL 3,753 6,283 8 235
At 31 March 2013, the Group’s and the Company’s trade N-—_EBE—-—=F=A=+—H"
debtors and bills receivable of $3,753,000 (2012: $6,283,000) REFNKRNT D B A3,753,000
and $8,000 (2012: $235,000), respectively, were individually T (ZE— 5 :6,283,0000t) &
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired 8,000 T (—&F— —4 :235,0007T)
receivables related to customers that were in financial 2 FEUN BR 3R % FE UK ZE 45 4 (@ Bl
difficulties and management assessed that the receivables EAHRRE ZEERMEFH
are expected not to be recoverable. Consequently, BR#E2EZFEBE MEREET
specific allowances for doubtful debts of $3,753,000 (2012: (LBFEE S TR E BT °
$6,283,000) and $8,000 (2012: $235,000), respectively, were E it > BEER @R RIZEERER
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral over 5 2 Bl 23,753,000t (=& — =
these balances. £ : 6,283,0007T) K8,0007T (=&

— Z 5 :235,0005T) c AEEIW
BRZEEHEBEEMNEAR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 8 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W E-_T-=F=A=1+—RLFE (L&)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) ~— 21. BRI E A B YR (A)
(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not (c) MRBEZERERREREE

impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be

impaired are as follows:

3 4 {8 B S B B4R 5 L RRE K
FE Wt Bl R % MR 3R 45 B e 0 AT 20
T

The Group The Company
big- ¥ N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —E-= —E-= —E-=

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr F
Neither past due nor impaired BERHIRE 129,493 197,298 49,405 84914
Less than 61 days past due BEL 6B 13,233 65,116 4,428 5,450
61 to 90 days past due eI 2908 1,239 1,158 71 308
More than 90 days past due BH90RA MU £ 3,332 4,391 71 810
17,804 70,665 4,570 6,568
147,297 267,963 53,975 91,482

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

168 42 360 HA =0 ORA (B 2 FE WU AR R B R
SR RACHRZEFAE -

BHAE I ROR(E 2 W AR EE %
BBUEFER ZEEFPHR
SENEERBRY - REBBHE
B EEERR REHERE
FRERE ERAFEERLE
EREEH BESKNERETR
U E o A<M E L RS AR
FEEAERR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) =~ 21, BURAREwBUK (A) .
(d) Impairment of amount due from an associate (d) ER—BEARFERE
During the year ended 31 March 2013, an associate was in BEZE-Z—-—=ZF=ZHA=+—H
financial difficulty and management assessed that the amount LEFEER B-HERARFHK
due from the associate is expected to be irrecoverable. Mg EEETGHERERRRE
Accordingly, an impairment loss on amount due from the BeE AR NRIEFTRERE - R
associate of $4,171,000 was made in the financial statements L o R E E 384,171,000 © £
during the year. NH B HRRBEER -
22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ... 2. RERBESFEY ... ..
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: () RERBLEEYEE:
The Group The Company
S 3 NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f =-2--f =B-=f =—T-=%
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
110 F Fr Fr Fr
Cash at bank and in hand RTERERRAS 270,015 149,227 142,387 61,504
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 8 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
EZT-=F=A=t+—HLEFE (KETT)

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) = 22. BERBLSEY M) . ..
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BBARFELEXEBFABRS
generated from operations: ZHEE
2013 2012
—E-=f —E-C&
Note $°000 $°000
Wt i 77
Profit before taxation BRE AR A 66,057 117,156
Adjustments for: e
Dividend income from unlisted equity FETRERS 2REWA
securities 4 (389) (1,828)
Interest income FIEWA 4 (2,255) (1,675)
Net loss/(gain) on disposals of fixed assets HEREEERE/ (WR)FH 4 1,790 (3,004)
Finance costs AE KA 5(2) 4,398 5,799
Amortisation of pre-paid interests in BAEE LB E 111
leasehold land 5(c) 59 58
Depreciation e 5(c) 17,154 17,947
Share of losses of associates EhBeAAER 17(b) 398 192
Share of losses/(profits) of EiEagAREE/ (8F)
jointly controlled entities 18 4,821 (7,522)
Impairment loss on fixed assets EBEEERERE 13(f) 8,504 -
Net valuation gains on investment RENEEMNEFE
properties 13(a) (44,905) (33,392)
Foreign exchange losses EBHEX 264 1,432
Operating profit before changes in REERZBA 2 L& HF
working capital 55,896 95,163
Changes in working capital: EEELRE:
Decrease in inventories BERD 49,005 12,808
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JE W BR 0 R LAt FE LUK
other receivables WY,/ (5n) 136,456 (94,234)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B RT R E MR R
other payables ORL) 1481 (70,494) 19,688
(Decrease)/increase in provision for RERBSERE (HD) /Em
long service payments (10,193) 5,290
Cash generated from operations CEEBEMERE 160,670 38,715

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES . . . ... 23 BOEIKRIAMEMSK ...
The Group The Company
r&HE ARH
2013 2012 2013 2012
—8-—= —E-= —E-= —g-=
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Trade creditors FE1TBR 82,372 120,152 33,498 58,243
Bills payable BREE 3,523 13,812 1,132 4,265
85,895 133,964 34,630 62,508
Accrued charges and other creditors EFERRAEMENSR 63,085 86,882 19,846 25,883
Amounts due to subsidiaries NG - - 4,319 6,514
Amounts due to related companies ENBEEARNRE
(note 31(c)) (BtEE31(c)) 1,483 418 370 418
Amounts due to jointly controlled ENEERRFTE
112 entities (note 31(c)) (HtEE31(c)) 148 - 13 3
Amount due to an associate P — Bt A RFE
(note 31(c)) (BaE31(c)) 199 = = =
Amount due to a shareholder B —-RRHE
— Chan Family Investment — Chan Family Investment
Corporation Limited Corporation Limited - 40 - 24
150,810 221,304 59,178 95,360
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or FrEENERRREMENSHTBEHER
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand. —EFREBEIEAESEWNAREIRBA
BIRF{EE -
The amounts due to subsidiaries, related companies, jointly EAMBAR BEELAT 8&4N
controlled entities, an associate and a shareholder are unsecured, Ty —EE N _]}52 BREFBEBESRE
interest-free and repayable on demand. I ARERE WERBAHOEE
=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 3% 3k 2% MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E=B—=F=A=1—BILFE GETH)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $25,000 ($20,000 prior to June 2012). The
employer’s contributions to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted
ORSO Scheme in Hong Kong for those employees who were
eligible to participate in the scheme. This scheme is operated in
a way similar to the MPF scheme, except that when an employee
leaves the scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s
employee contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the relevant amount of
forfeited employer’s contributions or refunded to the employer.

The employees of subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are members of a state-sponsored retirement scheme organised
by the local government in the PRC. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of payroll, to the
retirement scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to these retirement schemes is to make the
required contributions under the terms of the scheme.

.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) . 23. BYRARAMENK A .
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors and bills REEAEETENRAREMEN
payable with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet FHEMSRARA R EAEZERE 2T
date: T

The Group The Company
A%H KA

2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-= —E--F ZB-= —E-CF

$°000 $000 $°000 $000

Fr Fr Fr Fr

Current KA 46,610 84,716 22,939 45,247

Less than 61 days past due BEHORe B 29,621 43,354 11,013 14,670

61 to 90 days past due 61 B Z908 6,183 827 251 49

More than 90 days past due BEI90A M £ 3,481 5,067 427 2,542

39,285 49,248 11,691 17,261

85,895 133,964 34,630 62,508
The Group’s general payment terms are 30 to 90 days from the TEB-REIFGRRARBEAHE
invoice date. Therefore, the balances above which are classified as 308 ZE90B W EIEF - Bt - Eai ki@
current are mostly within 90 days from the invoice date. HNESRABOHEEREARIOBR

E|H -
. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 24, BEEAKER

AEECRBESIEAE ST SR
AREESB(ERBKRINERAZES
REBRHELIESHE (RESH
2l - BESTE AR EHKEBMNKE
B O HBUGETEAEE -RERES
B BEEXREESHAHZEIR
BEEBE WA ZSHELER - EE
BEBWAZ LR AB25000T (ZF
— ZF X B LLATH20,0000T)  EEM
BESHEEE 2R EBRES -

REE  AEBETAEERSEER
FMLABESHRNBERKTE &
BRI ZE - ZFTEUEMBRES
Bz AAKE  HERENFEE
RE2BERFAEEES KRR
Rz B E MRS REREEEH
Bz HRARERE -

FEBRPERIZHMBARZES
DHEESRFEAS B IHEEE
REBFTEIZHE - ZEMBRARAR
BETEZETEDLAELRAE
B o AEE BN FIRE 2
—BEERXNZERE 24K -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T - =F=-A=t—HILFE (K&T:)

25. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

25. EEEBRAMTNAER

() BERBERATINEAHAERS:

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents:

The Group The Company
XE5E ARH
2013 2012 2013 2012
—g-=f "B ZB-=F Z—B-_F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr FT Fr FT
Provision for Hong Kong rEE
Profits Tax for the year BEBANEHBE 7,891 10,681 2,348 3,094
Provisional Profits Tax paid 2R EHREH (5,784) ,791) (2,201) (2.511)
2,107 7,890 147 583
Provision of tax outside BBIRIIE
Hong Kong B 13,181 13,875 - =
Net tax payable FE 3% 8 F 5 15,288 21,765 147 583
114 (b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (b) EERBELEFEH (BE) &
&
(i) The Group (i) FEH
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EHEREEEEBERERN
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the EEFEH (BE) /AfN
movements during the year are as follows: AN MAFEENSE W
T
Undistributed
profits of
subsidiaries
Revaluation  Depreciation Provisionfor ~ and jointly
of investment offied  Provisionfor  longservice  controlled Cash flow
properties assets  inventories payments entities hedge Total
KEAAR
R& HEkE RERES LT Reng
VEEL it ] REER B AIREA b2y it
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

i i i i iz iz iz

Deferred tox arsing from: REFASBHETHSR

A | April 011 H=%--£BA-A 6466 (1.388) (4659) (6091) 5657 (5%) (611
Exchange adjustments EL W (19) (1%) (9) - - (36)
Charged!(credied) to profit or oss EERRAR/ (3rA) 5% 184 (179) ) (62) - @
Charged to reserves ERENR 4264 - - - s 5% 4860
At 31 March 2012 HZB-2£2f=1-8 11,514 i (608) i) 483 - 3450
Ac | April 2012 H=8-Z£Mp-7 11,514 i (608) [l 483 - 3450
Exchange adjustments EdgE 5 (19 (1§ 6l) S S )
(Credited)/charged to proft or loss EERAGIA) /MR (3754) 157 4161 2108 (113 = Bt
Charged to reserves ERENR S S S S = 9 9
At 31 March 2013 H=%-Z§ZB=1-R 7812 1985 (18 (5040) 3705 9 6589
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-=F=A=t—RILFE (K ET)

25. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 25. EERBRATNAEH (&)
....... (SONUNUEA) || .. ...ccooiiviviniiviniiveniisenecuneerneiensisorsiees eeeisaseuouneiosseasuessussnsuonnenoneaonsasntden i
(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (continued) (b) EERBELEFRESH (BE) &
& (&)
(i)  The Company (I AY-T]

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EREEAERBIANEL
recognised in the balance sheet and the movements 8% (BEE) /BENWAR

during the year are as follows: HOMNAEENSBOT :

Depreciation of Cash flow

fixed assets hedge Total

EEEENRE REREHNW &t

$000 $000 $°000

Fr Fr F

Deferred tax arising from:

KB THEBHELZH -

At | April 2011 R-E-—FMNA—H 4,262 (596) 3,666
Credited to profit or loss REHRFA (250) = (250)
Charged to reserves EREMR - 596 596
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE--f=ZA=+-H 4,012 - 4012
At | April 2012 RZZE--FEWNA—-H 4,012 - 4012
Credited to profit or loss TEEBEARTA (162) - (162)
Charged to reserves ERENR - 9 9
At 31 March 2013 RZB-Z5=ZA=+—H 3,850 9 3,859
(iii)  Reconciliation to the balance sheet (i) BEEBEXLHK
The Group The Company
r5H ¥ N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=fF B ZBE-=f CZEB--F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Net deferred tax assets HEEBBRERN
recognised in the balance sheet EEFTBHEEFE (2,454) (11,328) - -
Net deferred tax liabilities HEEEBREAN
recognised in the balance sheet EEfMEHEEFE 9,043 14,778 3,859 4,012
6,589 3,450 3,859 4,012

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

25. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 25. EEEBEBRAMMTAMWAESH (&

(c) RERNELEFRESHEE :

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note I(r),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of $50,543,000 (2012: $28,932,000)
attributable to certain subsidiaries as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction of the entities.
Tax losses amounting to $5,639,000 (2012: $5,859,000) do
not expire under the relevant current tax legislation, while
the remaining tax losses amounting to $44,904,000 (2012:
$23,073,000) incurred by the PRC subsidiaries will expire in

five years after they are incurred as follows:

BB AEBEBRRE T
MEARMNITIENEERAEEH
HYIEEE T 15 51 & B % 250,543,000
7T (=& — 4 :28,932,0007T) °
HREEEEE BB R EE
EmME - BrAltE A2 EE UK
HARRERBER < A g R
K- RBBEBRITBBEEMN T
SR B E B S 5,639,000
Jt (=& — — 4% :5859,0007T) °
MRNBNHPENBEAREEN
FHIEE 1B A ££44,904,000T (= F
— Z £ 1 23,073,0007T) #§ A B

BELEHEEFTRER:
2013 2012
=F—= —E-——fF
$°000 $°000
Fr F
Expiring in December: RIT=AlEiF -

2014 —E-NF 2,506 2,491
2015 —E-EF 495 492
2016 —E-REF 12,142 14,662
2017 —E—tF 18,294 5,428
2018 —E-N\F 11,467 =
44,904 23,073

Do not expire under current ERITRBEEAT TSR
tax legislation 5,639 5,859
50,543 28,932
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

W E_R—=F=A=+—BIFE (L&)

26. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

26, RABRBEER

The Group The Company
XEH AN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= -z —E—= —E-=

$°000 $000 $°000 $000

Fr Fr Fr F

At the beginning of the year REL 33,108 27,818 2,843 2,050

Exchange adjustments & % 125 872 - -

(Reversal of)/provision made FR(BE) fE (981) 7,684 (1,135) 638
Less: (Payments)/refund WER (R EE

during the year ME (9,337) (3,266) = 155

At the end of the year RE& 22,915 33,108 1,708 2,843

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group and the

Company are obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation

of employment in certain circumstances to employees who have

completed at least five years of service with the Group and the

Company. The amount payable is dependent on the employees’

final salary and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements

accrued under the retirement schemes of the Group and the

Company that are attributable to contributions made by the Group

and the Company.

Under the PRC Labour Contract Law, the Group is obliged to

make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain

circumstances to employees. The amount payable is dependent on

the employees’ final salary and years of service.

The Group does not set aside any assets to fund the above

remaining obligations.

REEB(RBHERG) » NEER
ARABRBEEEORBFEELF
FUEMEETHERTFLZE
WESNH -—FBHNEHE - X
NHEBEDIREBEEENELAFE
KERBEBMEE  AMNKES
EREERAQFRAKGTEITE
AERTAEERANARFREZ

FRIE e

RE(HESEBERE)  KEE
BEERAEETRRTFLZEN
BENH-—FBNEHE - I
MEBEDRBEENZRFER
REFHEMEE -

5 (81 3 4358 PR AE 0 7 A4S b
MF BT -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS . . = 27. BZ WERRE ...
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) BEZERIMDZEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances AEBEGEERSHRIBMDHE
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set VEBRESR CHREANGEE
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details mEBEIR o NA B RSB B A K
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of HOREIRFR ZEE W
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set T
out below:
Land and
Capital Investment buildings
Share Share redemption revaluation revaluation ~ Hedging  Retained
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
Bx RE tHREF
ki ROEE RERE EMEE EHEE UORE  REER GH

Note $000  §000 g0 $000 000 $000  §000 000
iG] 7z 7z 7z 7z 7z 7z 7z 7z

Balance at | April 2011 RZB--FMA-B2E&H 105,184 102,753 4l ) 16805 (3016) 547603 769,588
118 Changes in equity for the year: FEEREEE:

Profit for the year REEER 9 - - - - - - 94,597 94597

Other comprehensive income Hh2ERE = = = 218 10,064 3,016 - 13298
Total comprehensive income AEERANEAE

for the year - - - 218 10,064 3,016 94,597 107,895
Purchase of own shares: BEALARS: 27(c)(i)

- par value paid -EREE (1,810) - - - - - - (1,810)

- premium paid -EffEE S S S = = - (5,478) (5478)
Capital reduction on repurchase of BEAQARGIH

the Company's shares LusY) 27(0)() - - 1,810 - - - (1810) -
Dividends approved in respect of AEERLEBRL-5E

the previous year HKE 27(b) i) - - - - - - (21,037)  (21,037)
Dividends declared in respect of FEECERRE

the current year 27(b)(i) - - - - - - (4135 (4,135)
Balance at 31 March 2012 RZB-Z#=f=+-8R

and | April 2012 ZE-“EMA-BER 103374 102,753 2,91 (4) 26,869 - 609,740 845,023
Changes in equity for the year: TEERESD:

Profit for the year REEET 9 - - - - - - 18I

Other comprehensive income At 2ERE - - - (984) - 48 - (936)
Total comprehensive income REEREUEEE

for the year - - - (984) - 4 76,172 75,836

Dividends approved in respect of REEAMEBNL-FE
the previous year MRS 27(b)(ii) - - - - - - (12405 (12405

Balance at 31 March 2013 R-E-Z§=B=1-AzkH 103,374 102,753 2191 (988) 26,869 48 674107 908,454
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 8 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_T-—=F=-RA=1—RLLFE LET)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27.

(b) Dividends

(i)

(ii)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

(b) BB

BA - HEERE (&)

(i) BEREREFEALE

attributable to the year ERE
2013 2012
—8-=§ =—B-=%
$°000 $°000
FT Fr
No interim dividend declared —E-ZHFEIREK
for 2013 (2012: $0.02 PERE(ZE—ZF
per ordinary share) BRERER0.027T) - 4,135
Final dividend proposed after ~R#&EERABEBIRZEREARE
the balance sheet date of BREBR0.05T
$0.05 (2012: $0.06) per —®—=:0065%)
ordinary share 10,337 12,405
10,337 16,540

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date

has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet

date.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid

REFHRZERBREN KBRS
HRAEZEHRIAREE -

(i) FEfIEREREREABR
L—BREE  EREEE

during the year BERSTHIR S
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-C=F
$°000 $000
Fr Fr
Final dividend in respect of the BRE-—SBEE
previous financial year, approved WRAFERERZM
and paid during the year of $0.06 REREBREBERR0.06T
(2012: $0.10) per ordinary share (ZE—Z=F 10.107T) 12,405 21,037

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27. BRA& - EERRE (&
....... (COMUNUE) | et ettt
(c) Share capital (c) BA&
2013 2012
—E-=F “E-CF
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
R #E £8 ki #E 8
Note ’000 $°000 000 $°000
k& & I & I
Authorised: EERA:
Ordinary shares of $0.50 each BREBSITZEER 400,000 200,000 400,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued and CRIREBHREER:
fully paid:
At | April ROA-A 206,748 103,374 210,369 105,184
120 Purchase of own shares during RERBEALDFRH
the year (i - - (3,621) (1,810)
At 31 March R=ZB=1-H 206,748 103,374 206,748 103,374
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TEREEEEENETEEIR
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to MRS TEERERATRE
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary REFIEBRER—EWNLLHIBE
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual BE - MEEBEREARLNTIETE
assets. EELYZBERESER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
EZT-=F=A=t+—HLEFE (KETT)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

Purchase of own shares
During the year ended 3| March 2012, the Company
repurchased its own ordinary shares on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows:

Number of shares

RE S RERKRE (A

(c) BA& (&)

Highest price

()

Lowest price

HBEIK LB
BE-_ZE-—-—H=ZA=+—
BLEEER  ADTEEE
BHEXZAERATERAR
AARHBWMT :

Aggregate

Month/year repurchased paid per share paid per share consideration
BRKR G BRERHB paid

BB/ FE EREEERAR XANERSE XN REE EAE
’000 $ $ $000
FR T 7T Fr

September 201 |

—Z-—-%h1A 2,776 2.02 1.94 5,538

October 2011

—E-—-%+A 845 2.05 1.88 1,750

Total

BE 3,621 7,288

The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by
the par value of these shares. Pursuant to section 49H
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, an amount
equivalent to the par value of the shares cancelled of
$1,810,000 was transferred from the retained profits to
the capital redemption reserve. The premium paid on
the repurchase of the shares of $5,478,000 was charged

against retained profits.

B RS WEEE MR
AR ZEBEITRATE Eit
WEZEZERMD ZHEHE - RIE
&8 A BRI SE 4% - —
EREREIAHROEEZ
£ %41,810,0000T * B HRE
EFERTEAREE R#E o
=] B % 19 =2 73 5,478,000 7T
FEFREER PR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account and the
capital redemption reserve is governed by sections 48B
and 49H respectively of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies set out in note |(u).

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale equity securities held at the balance sheet date and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies

set out in notes | (f) and (k).

The investment revaluation reserve is not available for

distribution to equity shareholders of the Company.

Land and buildings revaluation reserve
The land and buildings revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies adopted for land and buildings set out in note

I (h) (i)

The land and buildings revaluation reserve is not
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the

Company.
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B o

REEGRHERE
RESHHEEEENEER
BEUHEERERS DT
BEMNRITFEEE  WRIE
El N AN YA A=
KR -

REEMHEBE AR KT
RARREFRA -

THREFEMELFE
AARERILTHRETF
EffifEE LREMEML
wREFHEANS TR
T (ML I(h) (i) RS LR
& o

TR EF 2 EGMREILR
AHDIRTADBDRERFE
)\O



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E=B—=F=A=1—BILFE GETH)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(v) Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending
subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for cash

flow hedges in note I(g).

(vi)  Other reserve
Other reserve represents a statutory reserve fund.
According to the articles of association of the
subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, the subsidiaries
are required to transfer at least 10% of their net profit,
as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
rules and regulations applicable to enterprises with
foreign investment, to the statutory reserve fund until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made

before distribution of a dividend.

(e) Distributability of reserves
At 31 March 2013, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company,
as calculated under the provisions of section 79B of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was $424,562,000 (2012:
$425,780,000). After the balance sheet date the directors
proposed a final dividend of $0.05 (2012: $0.06) per share,
amounting to $10,337,000 (2012: $12,405,000). This dividend
has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet

date.

27. RAE - RERKE (&)

d) FEOHERRRZ(E)

v) EHEE
HAREESEARRESR
EYTNYE AT E 2B
PHAFEERTEEE
MEZBRESREH PEEHE
REBREZTIQRERE
HHNETTERMER o

(vi) p=NiiA 4
HithEERLIERERS -
RIEAREB R E 2B L
RzEBERMR  HEA
AAEBARBEANINE
EZHEETRAREA
BEZMRNZZEDIREE
EREES  HEEHESE
EEFZMERZ50%%5 1k °
MZEEMEFERSNELED
BeA S AT{EE

(e) AIHAIRFEE
R=-EE-=H=ZHF=+-—-8"
BIEE B (DA RH) E79BIF
FECRARAMRSIRFARD
AREEEANGERESR
424,562,000T (=& — —F :
425,780,0007T) - REHE A % -
ESERRBARARESFR0.05
T (ZFE—ZF:0.067) &
§10,337,000Tc (=& — ZF :
12,405,0007T) - ZMREREER
MABRBEE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE - —c=A=t-ALFE (WETH)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

®

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
net debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes interest-bearing
loans and borrowings) plus unaccrued proposed dividends less
cash and cash equivalents (which excluded pledged deposits).
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity, less

unaccrued proposed dividends.

During the current financial year, the Group’s strategy, which
was unchanged from the previous financial year, was to
maintain the net debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio at a reasonable
level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt

financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

As at 3| March 2013 and 2012, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had outstanding interest-bearing loans and

borrowings.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject

to externally imposed capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E=B—=F=A=1—BILFE GETH)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also exposed
to equity price risk arising from its equity investment in other
entities. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at
bank and trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks

are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of cash at bank, the Group only places deposits
with major financial institutions which management believes

are of high credit rating.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount and for all new customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due between 30 to
120 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does

not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer and significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group
has significant exposure to individual customers. The default
risk of the industry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At
the balance sheet date, the Group has a certain concentration
of credit risk as 10.3% (2012: 40.6%) and 39.3% (2012: 46.8%)
of the total trade debtors was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively within

the manufacturing and sale of garments business segment.

28. MBERERERAVEE
FEEEEEREBBREFEHRARG
E-RBESMIIERAR - AEET
AEREHEMEERSZRENKRER
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REEFIEAMUT o
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TFRREWERRRE MBI
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ENFEEFEMEHEFYE
EATEBIE BT o RFFMEFR
REFBIHBMIABREZRESE
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RERBEBAREEFHNEREE
REASERENEFEEEXRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(@)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as
set out in note 30, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company
to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in
respect of these financial guarantees at the balance sheet date

is disclosed in note 30.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other

receivables are set out in note 21.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management including the short term
investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to

meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and
the Company’s derivative financial assets, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the

earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay.
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(b)

()

28. MIBEABEER A FEEE)

Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REELRK (&)
The Group and the Company AEERAERAT
003 00
ZE-ck ZE-CF
Contractual Contractual Contractual Contractual
undiscounted  undiscounted undiscounted undiscounted
cashinflow  cash outflow cash inflow cash outflow
AOLREBN ANLARRN ANLRERN AHLRERN
RERA RERd RERA Renn
within | year  within | year  Balance sheet within | year within | year Balance sheet
orondemand  orondemand carryingamount  orondemand  orondemand carrying amount
KEGER EEBER
-ERGRER  -ERZRER LEEE -FRARER  -FRIRER ZEARE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
7 7 7 7 7 #i
Derivative financial instruments heldas HEEREREHHIR
cash flow hedging instruments ZiTESRIA 1,468 (2,416) 52 - - -
Save as the above, the Group’s and the Company’s financial B ESTRruiisd » REB R A RD T
liabilities are repayable within one year or on demand and ZEREBBEEN —ERAREREBE
the contractual undiscounted cash outflow of these financial HEEEEZ LZESELsEREs
liabilities equals their carrying values on the balance sheet. A EXRIFTEPRESRLEEES
BERFARWIREEER -
Currency risk (c) BE¥ERE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables
and cash balances that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily Euros, United States dollars (“USD”), Pounds
Sterling, Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).

As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group does not
expect any significant movements in the USD/HKD exchange
rate. However, management acknowledges that the Group
is exposed to fluctuations in the exchange rates for other

currencies.

AEESRNEERAREERH
BEEBRSRUNEE R UG
ERIMEHENEBERGMES
HEWERR ENERARBEE
B SIBWBRABNEREIER
BE -ZExT RE-BIRAR
e o

MABTEETHS  AEEE
MEr BrEXRAFEEEKR
KB Al EEEBRR A&
EEE HAESERS BRI o
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(c) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Forecast transactions

At any point in time the Group aims to effectively hedge
its estimated foreign currency exposure in respect of
committed future sales, excluding those transactions
denominated in USD which are, or are expected to be,
entered into by operations with a functional currency of
HKD. Such transactions are currently not hedged under
the Group’s foreign currency risk management strategy
as the Group currently considers the risk of movements
in exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to be

insignificant.

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge
its currency risk and classifies these as cash flow hedges.
All of the forward exchange contracts have maturities
of less than one year after the balance sheet date. At
31 March 2013, both the Group and the Company
had forward exchange contracts hedging forecast
transactions with a net fair value of $52,000 (2012:
$Nil), recognised as derivative financial instruments (see

note 21).

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are
shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot

rate at the year end date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 8 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-—=F=-RA=1—RLLFE LET)

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28. MKEKREER AFEEE)
YALUES (continued) e s
(c) Currency risk (continued) (c) E¥ER (&)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) EREZEMEE (F)

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BRZHBERCAETH)
2013 2012
Z5-zf% -g-C-
United Hong United Hong
Pounds  States Kong  Pounds  States Kong

Sterling  Dollars  Euros Renminbi  Dollars  Sterling  Dollars Euros  Renminbi ~ Dollars
2 i EE AR®  En  #EE X EE AR®  En
$000  $000  $000  $°000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000 000
£z fr fr i1 fx fr Ffx fx fr i

The Group 15E

Trade and other receivables B R E ftEWS 2,135 96922 8,136 il 3 833198076 20617 3855 3
Cash and cash equivalents  BERBSEEY 12011 12,710 848 35343 21 90 24008 97 31,039 924
Trade and other payables At BRFREMENF @1) (,01)  (041)  (364) - (d00) (s3060)  (7390)  (499) -
Amounts due from/(to) El/ (Ef) 5@

group companies NEHAE 1718 (3,561) - - 45403 25T (019) = -8

Amountdue toa joindy BN -BENFFE

controlled entity - (13) - - - - (13) - - -
Net exposure arising RECEIEER

from recognised assets  BENERRERE

and liabilities 21,391 124,981 6,937 35270 48,129 3930 156910 1434 3439 (4.904)

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B 5

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

e T —F=-A=1+—HILtFE BT

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28. MKEKREER ATFEEE)

(c) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued)

(c) E¥EK (&)
(i) EZZEWEE(E)

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REZNEER (NATH)
2013 2012
ZE-CE —E-CF
United United
Pounds  States Pounds States

Sterling Dollars  Euros Renminbi  Sterling  Dollars Euros  Renminbi
g X BE AR®  EE  Xn EE AR
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000 $000
7z Fr Fr Fr r Fr r r

The Company NG|

Trade and other receivables PR R R H A e
Cash and cash equivalents RERBELEEY

Trade and other payables ERERRABEMR

Amounts due from/(to) El/ (B EEAT
group companies HE

Amount due to a jointly Ef-—aERRHE

controlled entity

2,135 50072 4145 290 832 89869 835 39
12,011 24711 51 30,870 920 6984 67 30316
@n) (15421 (552 @) (d00) (3198) (3428 %)
1718 (3,561) - - 25T (018 - -
- (13) - - - (13) - -

Net exposure arising RACRAZER
from recognised assets BENERRERE
and liabilities

21,391 55,782 4344 31,158 3929 62,840 4995 30,350
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
EZT-=F=A=t+—HLEFE (KETT)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

28. MIBEABEERAFEEE

(c) Currency risk (continued) (c) E¥EK (&)
(iii)  Sensitivity analysis (iii) BREE 5 HT
The following table indicates the instantaneous change TRIIREAEB 2R BR
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) F(REREEMN BREE
that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which BFEXzEETREEE (K
the Group has significant exposure at the balance EEEMEEFHRIERR
sheet date had changed at that date, assuming all other B)MEL 2NIEEE - I
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is ERBREMRERESEHTE -
assumed that the pegged rate between the HKD and the BUME  NEBBREBT
USD would be materially unaffected by any changes in HETCHMBERIGESE
movement in value of the USD against other currencies. THEMER ZER 2 M
BHIINEARTE -
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—B-=F ZE-C-f

Increase/(decrease) Effect on profit  Increase/(decrease) Effect on profit

in foreign after tax and in foreign after tax and

exchange rates retained profits exchange rates retained profits

HRBZEANR HBRBBEAR

EXEFHI(T ) REENZE EZLHI(TH) RBENzEE

% $°000 % $000

ARl Fr Al fr

Pounds Sterling %3 5% 893 5% 164
)% (893) (5)% (164)

Euros BE 5% 290 5% 598
()% (290) (5)% (598)

Renminbi ARE 8% 2,356 8% 2,298
)% (2,356) )% (2299)

Hong Kong Dollars B 8% 2,888 8% (294)
@)% (2,888) ©)% 294

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T =F=A=1+—RLLFE LET:)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(c) Currency risk (continued)

(iii) ~ Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the

balance sheet date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to currency risk at the balance sheet
date, including inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2012.

(d) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note |9).

The listed investments held in the available-for-sale portfolio
have been chosen based on their longer term growth
potential and are monitored regularly for performance against

expectations.

The Group’s unquoted investments are held for long term
strategic purposes. Their performance is assessed at least bi-
annually against performance of similar listed entities, based
on the limited information available to the Group, together
with an assessment of their relevance to the Group’s long

term strategic plans.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 £E &R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 8 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W E-_T-=F=A=1+—RLFE (L&)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28. MKEKREER AFEEE)

(d) Equity price risk (continued) (d)
At 31| March 2013, it is estimated that an increase/decrease of
10% (2012: 10%) in the relevant stock market index (for listed
investments), with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax (and
retained profits) and other components of consolidated equity

as follows:

MRERR (&)

R=-ZBE—=HF=ZA=+-H0 &
REMEHESTE  NERARKR
ZEHiE (EHRE) BEILG MR
D10% (ZF—=F 1 10%) » fh&t
BN RO REBEN R EE
FM(RREBER) REFEEREM
HEREP T

The Group
558
2013 2012

“E-zf —E-CE
Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
profit after other profit after other
tax and components tax and components
retained profits of equity retained profits of equity
HBRBLENR Hifgs HEREENR BELE S
REENZYE A | REEN 258 irPA
% §°000 $7000 % $000 $000
ATl i 7 Ak 7z I

Change in relevant stock ~ HEZF T 5754
market index: £8.

Increase B 10% - (14) 10% - (765)
Decrease B (10)% - 14 (10)% = 765

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and
other components of consolidated equity that would arise
assuming that the changes in the stock market index had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to equity price risk at the balance
sheet date. It is assumed that the fair values of the Group’s
equity investments would change in accordance with the
historical correlation with the relevant stock market index,
that none of the Group’s listed available-for-sale investments
would be considered impaired as a result of the decrease in
the relevant stock market index, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2012.

HRESMETR  BRETER
FHMOEBEREZBZEZBHER
HHEHELE  XEEANRERN
BXAKEMBEZERMIA M
ZETIASAEBRNGEHE B AKX
ZRERR HAEBEZKRHE
B (RREEF) RGSERN
HttR oS EER 2 MEFHE -
TBREAEEREREZQTFE
ERREERDEBZERME
EREGEMEE HMOSHRER
2. RAEENTHEE ETRE
TERFHARSERIMER
FEBERE ZBAITRE-F
——HFHRZEEET-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(e) Fair values

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value
The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date across the three levels of the fair
value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial
instrument categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value

measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

- Level | (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical financial instruments

- Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices
in active markets for similar financial instruments,
or using valuation techniques in which all

significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on

observable market data

- Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input

is not based on observable market data

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 £ EfF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 8 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-—=F=-RA=1—RLLFE LET)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28. MBERERER A VEEE)
....... VALUES (continued) | | ..t ettt e s
(e) Fair values (continued) (e) AFEEE)
() Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued) () BRAFEEIRYEHTA
(#&)

The Group and the Company

EEEREADF
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E-C—F
Level | Level 2 Level | Level 2
&AN & 52 AN & A2
$°000 $°000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Assets BE
Listed available-for-sale equity AEHEETRERS
securities 4,274 - 5,284 - 135
Derivative financial instruments BEERSREHHPIA
held as cash flow hedging ZiTHEEMIA
instruments - 52 - =
4,274 52 5,284 -
During the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, there R-EBE—=FER_-_FE—_—F=A
were no significant transfers between instruments in =+—HIEEER 36 HE
Level | and Level 2. ITEERBNERR2ZEIEEX
i -
(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair (i) HUHFRFEEIIEZE@T
value BZRFEHE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s REFBNEAKQRATR-ZE—=
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost ER-E-——-—F=H=1+—
are not materially different from their fair values as at 31 B LUBK 7N 2} 45 48 8 X A< 51 BR
March 2013 and 2012. NemIEHENFPEEL

BERER-

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28. MBERERER A VEEE)
....... YALUES (continued) | | .. ... e
(f) Estimation of fair values H DFEEZMGF
The following summarises the major methods and LT T A hsr€m I A
assumptions used in estimating fair values of financial AFEENEEFERREBR -
instruments.
() Securities (i) #Ex
Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the AT EEREERBZTS
balance sheet date without any deduction for transaction BREHE TFHRIIK
costs. 7R o
(i) Derivatives (i) PrEITAR
Forward exchange contracts are marked to market by EHNESNDITRENE
discounting the contractual forward price and deducting BB UREEBHIRER
the forward rate at the balance sheet date. THREEER -
29. COMMITMENTS . 2B
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2013 not (@ R=ZE—Z=F=RA=+-8"1
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: KRB HRRAE LB E2ERE
BT :
The Group The Company
r5E ARE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—¥-=f -T--f -FT-=f Z-%-°F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr F Fr F
Contracted for B4 258 2,826 - 8

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 £E &R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 8 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W E-_T-=F=A=1+—RLFE (L&)

29. COMMITMENTS (continued) 29. EIE ()

(b) At 31 March 2013, the total future minimum lease payments
in respect of properties under non-cancellable operating

leases are payable as follows:

by R=ZE—=F=ZA=+—H R

BTIAUMBRHKEHETAERE
R ERWERSFRBELEWN
T

The Group
rEE

2013 2012

—E—-=fF —E—-=F

$°000 $°000

Fr Fr

Within | year —FR 1,401 3,249

After | year but within 2 years —FHREMER - 1,097

After 2 years but within 5 years MEZRERLFR - 2,315
1,401 6,661 137

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties
held under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to three years, with an option to renew
the lease upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated. None

of the leases includes contingent rentals.

30. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial guarantees issued

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued guarantees
to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to its wholly
owned subsidiaries. The directors do not consider it is probable
that a claim will be made against the Company under any of the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at the balance
sheet date under the guarantees issued is the total amount of
facilities drawn down by the subsidiaries at the balance sheet date
amounted to $2,391,000 (2012: $9,547,000).

The guarantees were issued by the Company at nil consideration.
The transactions were not at arm’s length, and it is not possible to
measure reliably the fair value of these transactions in accordance
with HKAS 39 had they been at arm’s length. Accordingly, the
guarantees have not been accounted for as financial liabilities and

measured at fair value.

AEBRBERKERERENYE
HEBA ELEE-RAOSHH -
E=-F WEAERECIMARE
B EERERRETEREE i
FHEANYFEBEREHE -

HRBEERERE

2B HN M BEER

REER KATRERETEZENES
REERFZRITREMRITRMEE
RO BETIARTREBRRIBTMIE
REARRATIREHFR - NOABARE
EHERARENESEEAMBLR
REE A SI2H92,391,000tER (=&
— T4 1 9,547,0007T) °

HAAREB 2 BERILENAE - L3
EEZRZUTERBEETBSTER
EIRBEEERGEAEMFAEAR
ZRAVEE AUZSERTEE
RUBEERTRAFEETE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS =~ 31. HEBALZEARS ...
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in MREXGHHRREMSTABREZR
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following SGRERIN KREBTLUTEKRE
material related party transactions: BALRS:

(a) Transactions with YGM Trading Limited and its (a) BYGMEZERLAREWE A
subsidiaries (“YGMT Group”) ATYGMTRE 2R 5
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E-—=
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Purchases of garment products BERXER 90 85
Sales of garment products HEMKER 32,868 38,615
Rental income received and receivable Bl RERYERES KA 5,195 4,808
Management fee received and receivable W R EWREEE 804 804
138 Building management fee received ERREREFEERE
and receivable 324 300
Notes: e
YGMT Group is related to the Group as certain directors and their YGMTEB 2 ETFTEETRFE 2 HBE AL
associates are collectively the controlling shareholders of both YGMT EREAYGMTEE RAEE ZIERIRE
Group and the Group. It YGMTEBAAXREBZBEEAL ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-=F=A=t—RILFE (K ET)

31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. HEEBEALTZERR S (H)
....... (COMUNUE). | oottt rrte ettt ettt e
(b) Transactions with other related parties (b) EtBAEALTZXRS
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—-fF
Note $°000 $°000
et Fr Fr
Wouxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. BMERIBZEHBERAA ()
Purchases of raw materials BEREMR 14,135 33,447
Guangdong Xi Mu Industrial BRABEEXERAA
Company Limited (i)
Sales of garment products SHERXE R 11,523 -
Notes: Kiat :
. . . . » " 139
(i)  Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. is a wholly owned subsidiary of () EBSRIBZHHBERATALRES
Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd., a jointly controlled ZEENTES - RBREARLTZ
entity of the Group. 2EBEEWBEAR °
(i)  Guangdong Xi Mu Industrial Company Limited is an associate of (i) EBERABSEERLATNBRNEHZH
the Group. NG

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A ]



140

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

e T —F=-A=1+—HILtFE BT

31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(c) Balances due from/(to) related companies, jointly

3. HEEBEATZERR S (#)

(0 Bl (B BEAT 582

controlled entities and associates: TREHE NTRIE
2013 2012
—E2—=£ —E-
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Amount due from YGMT Group EURYGMTE BB 2,490 4,238
Amount due to YGMT Group ENYGMTR B FIE (1,120) -
Amount due to WTCO07 Holdings FE{FWTCO7 Holdings Pte Ltd.
Pte Ltd. MIE (363) (418)
Amount due from Allied Textiles R ST B L 4 4 B PR
Co., Ltd. DNEHRE 1,475 1,466
Amount due to Wuxi Flex Textile BRESERIHER
Co., Ltd. BRATRIE (148) =
Amount due from Guangzhou Top Yield FEWEMNREBEXER DA
Garment Limited FRIE - 2,851
Amount due to Guangdong Xi Mu ENERABEXER
Industrial Company Limited NRIRIE (199) =
Notes: Mzt -

WTCO07 Holdings Pte Ltd. is related to the Group as it is held by a

director of the Group.

(d) Transactions with key management personnel

All members of key management personnel are the directors

of the Company, and their remuneration is disclosed in

note 7.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 £E &R

WTCO07 Holdings Pte Ltd.FZx S [E —
LESHA o FE Lk - WTC07 Holdings
Pte Ltd AARNEB 2 BEAL -

d) FEEBAEBNRS
FEXEEBABHAERARATZ
B EEME O AMEETER

E;E_o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 3% 3k 2% MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E=B—=F=A=1—BILFE GETH)

The Group believes the following critical accounting policies
involve the most significant judgements and estimates used in the

preparation of the financial statements.

(a) Write-down of inventories
The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses,
projections of expected future saleability of goods and,
management experience and judgment. Based on this review,
a write-down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in customers’ preferences,
actual saleability of goods may be different from estimations
and profit or loss in future accounting periods could be

affected by differences in these estimations.
(b) Deferred tax assets — future benefit of tax losses

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
I(r), the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses as at the year end based
on management’s assessment that it is probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax charges in the period in which such estimates

are changed.

32. BT A& R &

AEEREEERRMBEHERE  UT
FERNEESAHRESIRBEEN
F A 5T o

(a) WREE
rEESZFERED T FHE
RREMEHENTBARRBEERE
BHEBRABREFENER
HEFLTHER -HMEFEENE
HEKXRZEAEMGGTHTEERF
B AAEEESREFHANER
MMHTFENER EREFN
RN HEEE EREYH
ETREMTHNTE - BiEs
M AR ERFISERE -

(b) EEHEEE-BEBRZRR
R &
REMEI(AE 2S5 BUEK
HREZEENLIADATRER
BB BRAiEEREHRERE
AR HE A 2 B R DU S R R
REEF AREEREBEFL
ZEFHEBERDELERRE
E o dREMREEROMGERE
REEZRBEUZMATESH[
HIEEFrEREENEINFE
BXHBRTE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

32. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(c) Valuation of investment properties
The valuation of investment properties requires
management’s input in respect of various assumptions
and factors relevant to the valuation. The Group engages
independent professional qualified valuers to conduct an
annual revaluation of the Group’s investment properties
based on assumptions agreed between the Group and the

valuers prior to adoption.

(d) Provision for long service payments
As explained in note 26, the Group makes provision for
lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees in both Hong Kong and the PRC.
The payments due are dependent on future events and recent
payment experience may not be indicative of future payments.
Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect profit

or loss in future years.

33. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING

At 31 March 2013, the directors consider the immediate and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Chan Family

Investment Corporation Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-—=F=-RA=1—RLLFE LET)

34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 34. REE-F—=%=A=+—H
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED IFFECHEMEERERNE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR R MERARZREBAEBRNE

....... ENDED 31 MARCH 2013 . B,
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA EEAUBBEREB A BBESR
has issued a number of amendments and new standards which are MABERMETR=Z—=5=A
not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2013 and which have S+T—BLEFEERERNBITR
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the FER > MAMERRILKRERMNE
following which may be relevant to the Group. RAeHEFERARAEBNERUT

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on -l
or after FEAEN
Amendments to HKAS |, Presentation of financial ERGERSEI5 (1BF) I July 2012 —E-"%tA-H
statements — Presentation of items of other BHEHENZH B
comprehensive income 2EUZEEEHZS
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements ERUBREENEI0F | January 2013 “Z-=f-A—-H
REHBHE
HKFRS |1, Joint arrangements BANBREEANENR I January 2013 “Z2-=Zf-A-H
BEZH
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities ERMBHREERNE I | January 2013 —E-=%-H8-H
REMEREZZHE
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement ERMBEREENE R | January 2013 “Z-=Zf-A-H
AFEETE
HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011) BEETEREIS | January 2013 “2-=Zf-A-H
BUABHRE (22— —F)
HKAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures & /B &3 ERIE28%  REEL TR | January 2013 —E-=%-HF-H
BELENRE
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-201 | Cycle BEUBREEAFEKE | January 2013 “Z2-=5-5-H
(ZEENE-F——FHH)
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: ERMBREEANETR (BIT) | January 2013 —E-=f-f-H
Disclosure — Offsetting financial assets and PHTR KE-THEER
financial liabilities EPRHEERY
Amendments to HKFRS 32, Financial instruments: BERBUBREERER (BT - | January 2014 “E-ME-A-H
Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and E2@IA 20 -2@EER
financial liabilities EHEERY
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments EBUBREERE | January 2015 “E-h%¥-A-H
2@IA
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For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T =F=A=+R.LFE BT

34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 3. RBZ-ZE—=F=HA=1+—H

144

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements as follows:

Amendments to HKAS |, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income

The amendments to HKAS | require entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would be
reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are
met from those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss.
The Group’s presentation of other comprehensive income will be
modified accordingly when the amendments are adopted for the

first time.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated
and separate financial statements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation —
Special purpose entities. It introduces a single control model to
determine whether an investee should be consolidated, by focusing
on whether the entity has power over the investee, exposure to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and the

ability to use its power to affect the amount of those returns.

The application of HKFRS 10 is not expected to change any of
the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at | April 2013. However, it may
in the future result in investees being consolidated which would not
have been consolidated under the Group’s existing policies or vice

versa.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
EZT-=F=A=t+—HLEFE (KETT)

34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

HKFRS 11, which replaces HKAS 31, Interests in joint ventures,
divides joint arrangements into joint operations and joint ventures.
Entities are required to determine the type of an arrangement by
considering the structure, legal form, contractual terms and other
facts and circumstances relevant to their rights and obligations
under the arrangement. Joint arrangements which are classified
as joint operations under HKFRS || are recognised on a line-
by-line basis to the extent of the joint operator’s interest in the
joint operation. All other joint arrangements are classified as joint
ventures under HKFRS || and are required to be accounted for

using the equity method. Proportionate consolidation is no longer

allowed as an accounting policy choice.

The application of HKFRS |1 is not expected to change the
Group’s accounting for its jointly controlled entities which are
currently accounted for using the equity method. However, it
may in the future result in joint arrangements being accounted for

differently under the Group’s existing policies.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities.
The disclosures required in HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive
than those required in the current standards. The Group may have
to make additional disclosures about its interests in other entities

when the standard is adopted for the first time on | April 2013.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS I3
also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non financial
instruments. HKFRS 13 is effective as from | April 2013, but
retrospective adoption is not required. The Group estimates that
the adoption of HKFRS [3 will not have any significant impact
on the fair value measurements of its assets and liabilities, but
additional disclosures may need to be made in the 2014 financial

statements.
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GROUP PROPERTIES

5 8 1) 3

Details of the major properties of the Group are as follows:

AEBERMEERFIWT ¢

Location o B Existing use A% Term of lease HEFH
Major properties held for investment

BEREMBZEENE

The whole building BH [ Medium-term FEIEA
22 - 24 Tai Yau Street NEEH AR

San Po Kong, Kowloon REH22 - 245

Hong Kong 210

Units 10C3, 10D and I0E| on level 10 FEARKNE [GES Medium-term FHIAL
Junyao International Plaza LEmHRER

No. 789 Zhaojiabang Road B ERT895

Xuhui District, Shanghai City HEERES

The People’s Republic of China & JT10C3, 10DK I0E|

Unit 1505 — 1508 on level 15 PEARXNE [GES Medium-term hEE A
Fudan Science Park Tower (Block 11) LEmHBE

No. I | Guotai Road BIZREE115R

Yangpu District, Shanghai City BHERRERE

The People’s Republic of China

(I1%%) B 7T1505 - 1508
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

hFEHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LlEILaET)

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“2ENEF —2-%F C"T--f C-T-"F C-B-Z=%
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000 $7000
F Fr F Fr Fr
Results E3
Turnover HER 1,625,529 1,310,042 1,416,250 1,750,673 1,333,068
Profit from operations KR 48,669 20,703 26,221 82,233 39,273
Finance costs MEMRAK (9,238) (5,634) (5,695) (5,799) (4,398)
Share of profits less losses of ELEE A RRRREE
associates [,151 1,306 484 (192) (398)
Share of profits less losses of EiEEeARENHER
jointly controlled entities 38,193 34,237 72,594 7,522 (4,821)
Net gain on disposals of subsidiaries ~ HEM B A &K & FE = = 1,808 = -
Gain on disposal of a former HEAMBE A RAKE
associate 4,684 - 293 - -
Impairment losses on interest BENTERREWRATEE
in associate and dividend REAREZHERE 147
receivable from a former (FR) B E
associate (recognised)/reversed - (7,914) 7914 - -
Impairment loss on fixed assets EEEERERE
(recognised)/reversed (#:2) /#%E - (21,014) 5,498 = (8,504)
Gain on disposals of land and buildings H&E T REFR
and investment properties REMEWSE - 81,133 - - -
Net valuation (losses)/gains on REMERLE (B8B) Wz
investment properties E] (7,845) 20,915 20,298 33,392 44,905
Profit before taxation BB AR R 75,614 123,732 129,415 117,156 66,057
Income tax PREH (4,344) (17,633) (15,829) (12,823) (10,311)
Profit for the year REERF 71,270 106,099 113,586 104,333 55,746
Attributable to: EREER
Equity shareholders of the Company AR RIREFHE A 70,980 105,932 113,053 103,159 53,082
Non-controlling interests FERRERES 290 167 533 1,174 2,664
Profit for the year REEEA 71,270 106,099 113,586 104,333 55,746

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

AFHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LLEITTET)
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“ETHhE C—E-TF - C-—T--F CZEB-Z=f%
$000 $000 $000 $000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Fixed assets EEEE 249,137 189,987 208,102 272,789 303,109
Construction in progress REIR 609 - - - -
Intangible assets BREE 2,874 1,569 1,569 3,117 3,117
Goodwill (kS - - - - -
Interests in associates BeNAER 6,586 - 203 6 2,096
Interests in jointly controlled entities &% 2 A& 477,224 513,133 610,400 611,270 610,118
Prepayment for fixed assets EEERAR = = 3,273 789 870
Other financial assets HttemEE 5,986 5,820 7,854 8,079 7,069
Dividend receivable from jointly EREERARARE
controlled entitiy 28,678 - - - -
Deferred tax assets EEREHEE 7,765 17,301 17,974 11,328 2,454
Net current assets RBEEFE 154,527 293,484 299,246 362,702 375,052
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRDEE 933,386 1,021,294 1,148,621 1,270,090 1,303,885
Non-current liabilities F¥RBEE (39,557 (39,879) (45,181) (47,886) (31,958)
Net assets EEFE 893,829 981,415 1,103,440 1,222,204 1,271,927
Share capital R 105,184 105,184 105,184 103,374 103,374
Reserves i 787,585 875,004 996,579 1,115,751 1,160,646
Total equity attributable to equity FERBRARD B R
shareholders of the Company BEAERLE 892,769 980,188 1,101,763 1,219,125 1,264,020
Non-controlling interests FERBRRES 1,060 1,227 1,677 3,079 7,907
Total equity EREE 893,829 981,415 1,103,440 1,222,204 1,271,927
Per share basis NERIE
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREXRRBEEF HK$0.34 HK$0.50 HK$0.54 HK$0.49 HK$0.26
Note: Kt -

In order to comply with the amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes — Deferred tax:
Recovery of underlying assets, in the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group changed
its accounting policy for measuring deferred tax on investment properties carried
at fair value. The new policy has been applied retrospectively by remeasuring
deferred tax. As a result, profit and net assets for the years ended 3| March 2009

to 201 | have been restated.
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